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Significant Accounting Important Communication to Members

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has taken a “Green Initiative in Corporate Governance™
by allowing paperless compliance by companies through electronic mode. In accordance
with circulars issued by the Ministry, Companies can now send various notice and
documents including annual report, to its shareholders through electronic mode to the
registered e-mail addresses of shareholders. To support this green initiative of the
Government in full measure, members who have not registered their e-mail addresses, so
far, are requested to register their e-mail addresses in respect of electronic holdings with
the Depository through their concerned Depository Participants and in respect of physical
holdings with the Company.
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NOTICE

Notice is herchy given that the 147" Annual General Meeting of the Members of Teesta Valley Tea
Cuo. Ltd. will be held at “McLeod House™, 3, Netaji Subhas Road. 2™ Floor, Kolkata: 700 001 on
Tuesday, the 26" September, 2023 at 03.00 P. M to transact the following business :-

Ordinary Business

E: To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement, consisting of Balance Sheet
as at 31" March, 2023 and the Statement of Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended 31* March, 2023 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors
thereon,

Z To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Mudit Bajoria (DIN 00015402) who retires by rotation
and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

Lad

To appoint Branch Auditors and to fix their remuneration.

Registered Office By Order of the Board
3, Netaji Subhas Road Teesta Valley Tea Co. Lid.
Kaolkata: 700 001

Dated: 217 August, 2023

Ram Kishan Nowal
Director
({DIN : 00310028)



TEESTA VALLEY TEA CO. LIMITED

[nformation on Directors seeking Appointment / Re-appointment Pursuant to the Regulation
36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Item No.2 of the Notice

| SL. No. | Particulars Mr. Mudit Bajoria
I Director Identification No. | 00015402
(DIN) _
2 Date of Birth 07/10/1964
3 Date of First Appointment | 01/08/2011
4 Qualification Giraduate
5 | No. of Shares held None
] Nature of Expertise Vast Experience in Tea Industries more than 2
decades.
T Relationship Between Brother of Mr Bharat Bajoria & Father of Mr. Dhruv
Dircctors Inter —Se Bajoria— Other Director of the Co.
8 Other Directorship The Bormah Jan Tea Co. (1936) Ltd.
MelLeod & Co. Lid.
Bajoria Properties Pvt. Lid.
Charali Investments & Properties Pvt. Lid.
Classique Trade Holdings Ltd.
Indo Carbon Industries Lid.

By Order of the Board
Teesta Valley Tea Co. Ltd.

Registered Office

3, Netaji Subhas Road

Kolkata: 700 001 Ram Kishan Nowal
Dated: 21™ August, 2023 Director

(DIN ; 00310028)



TEESTA VALLEY TEA CO. LIMITED

NOTES:

@)

b)

d)

€)

f

A Member entitled to atiend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint a
Proxy to atiend and vole thereal instead of himself. A Proxy need not be a Member of
the Company. Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the Company’s
Registered Office situated at 3, Netaji Subhas Road. Kolkata : 700 001 not less than
forty-eight hours before the Meeting.

In terms of Rule 19 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014,
a person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifly and holding in
the aggregate not more than ten percent of the share capital of the Company carrying
voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the
company carrving voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person
shall not act as a proxy for any other person or sharcholder.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain
closed from 19 September. 2023 to 26" September, 2023 (both days inclusive).

A Member desirous of getting any information on the accounts or operations of the
Company is requested to forward his queries to the Company at least seven days prior
to the Meeting so that the required information can be made available at the Meeting.

Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to
register their e-mail addresses for receiving all communication including Annual
Report, Notices, Circulars, etc. from the Company electronically.

In case of joint holders. attending the meeting, only such joint holder, who is higher in
the order of names. will be entitled to vote at the meeting.

The instroctions for members for voting electronically are as under:-

(i) The voting period begins on 23/09/2023 (09:00 A.M.) and ends on 25/09/2023
{05:00 P.M.). During this period sharcholders’ of the Company, holding shares either
in physical form or in dematerialized form. as on the cut-off date (record date) of
19/09/2023, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled
by CDSL for voling thercafier.

{(ii} Sharcholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be
entitled to vote at the meeting venue.

(1i1) Pursuant to SEBl Circular No. SEBVHO/CFDVCMIVCIR/P/2020/242 dated
§9.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015: listed entities are
required to provide remote e-voting facility to its sharcholders, in respect of all
shareholders® resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by the
public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting

facility to listed entitics in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and
maintenance of multiple user 1Ds and passwords by the shareholders.
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In order to increasc the cfficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public
consultation, it has been decided to enable c-voling to all the demat account holders,
by way of a single login credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of
Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast
their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating
seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenicnce of participating in e-
voting process.

(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated
December 9, 2020 on ¢-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies. Individual
shareholders holding\securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat
account mainiained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Sharcholders are
advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to
access e-Voling Facility.

Pursuant to aforesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual

meetings for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given

below:
Type of | Login Method -
shareholders
1y Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through thein
Individual existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting
Sharcholders page without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi /]
holding Easicst are htips:web.cdslindia.com/mveasi/home/login or visit

securities in
Demat mode
with CDSL

www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi.

2) After successtul login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting
option for eligible companics where the evoting is in progress as per the
information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will
be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting
during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the
system of all e-Voting Service Providers 1.e.
CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Voting
service providers’ website directly.

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration.

4)  Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat
Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available
on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by
sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account.
Afier successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option
where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of all|
e-Voting Service Providers.




Individual
Sharcholders
holding
securities in
demat mode
with NSDL

1)

2)

3)

Il you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the ¢-
Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL.:
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once
the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the *Beneficial Owner”™ icon
under “Login™ which 1s available under ‘1DeAS” section. A new screen will
open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to
e-Voting™ under e-Voting services and you will be able to sec e-Voting page.
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-
directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period.

If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available
at https:/feservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or
click at https:/eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ldeasDirectRes.isp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: hups://www.evoting. nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer
or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on
the icon “Login™ which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member® section. A
new screen will open. You will have to enter your User 1D (i.e. vour sixteen
digit demat account number hold with NSDL)., Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you
will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein vou can see e-Voting page.
Click on company name or ¢-Voting service provider name and you will be
redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voling period.

Individual
Sharcholders
(holding
securities  in
demat  mode)
login  through
their
Depository
Participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through
vour Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.
After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click
on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site
after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected
to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User 1D/ Password are advised to

use Foreet User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any

Login type

technical issues related io ]

i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in Demat mode with

CDSL

Individual Shareholders .hﬂl.d:.{ng
securitics in Demat mode with

NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL
helpdesk by sending a request al helpdesk evotingf@edslindia.comor
contact at 022- 23058738 and 22-23058542-43.

| Members 1 fa_c_mg ﬁ;};..téchnical issue in h‘éin can contact NSDL
helpdesk by sending a request at evotingigdnsdl.co.in or call at
toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30




(v) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other
than individual shareholders holding in Demat form & physical shareholders.

1} The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.
2} Click on “Shareholders™ module.
3) Now enter your User D

a. For CDSL: 16 digits benchiciary 1D,
For NSDL: 8 Character DP 1D followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

¢. Sharcholders holding shares in Physical Form should ¢nter Folio Number
registered with the Company.

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.
5) If you arc holding shares in demat form and had logged on to

www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then
your existing password is to be used.

) 1 you are a flirst-time user follow the steps given below:

For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form other than individual and
Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department

{Applicable for both demat sharcholders as well as physical shareholders)
s Shareholders who have not wupdated their PAN  with the
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence
number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.

| Dividend | Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/vyyy format) as

Bank recorded in yvour demat account or in the company records in order to login,
 Details e If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company,
- OR please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details
Date of field as mentioned in instruction (v).
Birth
(DOB) | .
(vi) Alfier entering these details appropriately, click on *SUBMIT™ tab.

(vii)

{viii)

(ix)

Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company
selection screen. However, sharcholders holding shares in demat form will now reach
*Password Creation” menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login
password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used
by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they
are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform.
It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep your password confidential.

For sharcholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-
voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN for the relevant TEESTA VALLEY TEA COMPANY
LIMITED on which vou choose 1o vote.
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(x1)

(xii)

(Xiil)

(xiv})

(xv)

{(xvi)

On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the
same the option “YES/NO™ for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The
option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you
dissent to the Resolution.

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK™ if you wish to view the entire Resolution
details.

Alter selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”,
clse to change vour vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

Once you “"CONFIRM™ your vote on the resolution. you will not be allowed to modify
your vole,

You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option
on the Voting page.

If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User 1D and
the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as
prompted by the system.

Facility for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians —Remote Voting

MNon-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc,) and
Custodians are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves
in the “Corporate™ module.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity
should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin
login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for
which they wish to vote on.

The list of accounts linked in  the login should be mailed to
helpdesk.evotingf@edslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be able
to cast their vote.

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they
have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in
the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board
Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly
authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and (o the
Company at the email address viz; eilevoting2014(@gmail.com , if they have voted
from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the
scrutinizer to verify the same.

{xvii}) Mr. Babu Lal Patni, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No.FCS 2304), has

been appointed as the Scrutinizer to Scrutinize the remote e-voting process In a fair
and transparent manner,

{(xviii) At the Annual General Meeting, at the end of the discussion of the resolutions on

which voting is to be held, the chairman shall with the assistance of the Scrutinizer
order voting for all those members who are present but have no cast their vote
electronically using the remote e-voting facility or Ballot Form.
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{xix) The Scrutinizer shall immediately aficr the conclusion of Voting at the Annual General

(xx)

(xxi)

Meeting, first count the votes at the Annual General Meeting, thercafier unblock the
voles cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the
employment of the company and make not later than 48 howurs of conclusion of the
meeting, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or
against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing who shall
countersign the same.

The Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing shall declare the result of
voling forthwith.

The results declared along with Scrutinizer’s Report shall be communicated to BSE
Ltd, Where the shares of the company are listed.

{xxi1) Please Contact Company’s registrar Maheshwan Datamatics Pvt. Ltd. Telephone No

033-22482248, Email Id: mdpldci@vahoo.com for any further clarifications.

(xxiii) In case vou have any querics or issues regarding c-voling, you may refer the

Frequently  Asked Questions (“FAQs™) and c¢-voling manual available at
www.evotingindia.com under help section or write an email to
helpdesk.evotinglededslindia.com.

Registered Office By Order of the Board

3, Metaji Subhas Road Teesta Valley Tea Co. Lid.
Kaolkata: 700 001

Dated: 21% August, 2023

Ram Kishan Nowal
Direclor
{DIN : 00310028)
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

TEESTA VALLEY TEA COMPANY LTD.

TO THE MEMBERS

OF

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 147™ Annual Report together with the Audited Statement

of Accounts for the Financial Year ended 31* March 2023.

FINANCIAL RESULTS & PERFORMANCE

- (Rupees in “000)

 Particulars . 2022-23 2021-22

Total Revenue 1,75,52236 1,91,063.89

| Total Expenses 1,97,282.81 1,95.926.35

| Profit/ (Loss) before Depreciation & Tax ) (17.458.64) (138.39)

| Depreciation 430181 4.723.53

| Profitf (Loss) Before Tax (21.760.45) (4.862.46)
Tax Expenses - Current Tax B s 1.100.00 |
Deferred Tax 01.18 (104.73)

| Profit! {Loss) for the Year

{ Other Comprehensive Income

(21,851.63)

(5,857.73)

(3.837.73)

| Total Income / {Loss) for the year (21,851 63)

| Balance brought forward from previous year 1,26,525.07 1,37 382 80

| Balance available for appropriations 1,04,673.44 1.31.525.07

| Dividend = =

| Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve - 3,000.00

| Balance carried forward 104,673 .44 1.26,525.07
DIVIDEND

Due to Loss for the year, vour Directors do not recommend any dividend for the vear ended 317 March,
2023. The dividend on Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares also not recommended as a company

having commitment of Capital Expenditure.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Directors do not propose to transfer to the General Reserve out of the amount available for
appropriation and an amount of Rs. 1,04,673.44 is proposed to be retained in the Profit & Loss Account.

OPERATIONS

During the vear 339 824 kos of tea was manufactured as against 3.43.133 kes in the previous year.
During the vear under review, the production of the Company was little low to the previous year, due to

unfavorable weather conditions.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The two Tea Gardens of the Company in Darjeeling, Teesta Valley and Gielle, are situated in the most
beautiful wvalley of Himalaya, facing Kanchen jungha snow clad peaks. Besides scientifically
maintaining over 35 lakh tea bushes on both the gardens, the Company looks afier its 2000 workers and
staft with zeal and humane outlook. There are nine Primary Schools, four English Medium Nursery
Scheools and two High Schools to impart proper education to the children of the two gardens. The Estates
have 32 beds — well built and well maintained hospital. Two standby Ambulances help serious patients
to be moved to Siliguri and Darjeeling for specialized treatment at Company’s expenses. There are well
maintained 5 crutches where workers™ children are kept and looked afler and provided with milk and
biscuits. The houses of the workers and staff are well maintained with hygienic conditions kept around
the labour lines.

Provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 relation lo constitution of Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee and compulsory expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities are
nol applicable to the Company during the year.

DMRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Acl. 2013 the Board of Direclors confirm that;

L. In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed and there has been no material departure.

2 The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments’ and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company al the end of the [inancial year and of the profitloss of the
Company for that period.

ik

The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularitics;

4. The Directors had prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis.

L

The Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that
Such internal financial controls are adequate and were operaling effectively.

6. The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

MRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Since the last Report, Mr. R.K. Dixit (DIN: 00607134) has resigned from the Directorship w.e.f.
11.07.2023 due to his old age and health condition. The Board considered and accepted his resignation.
The Board placed on record its appreciation for his contribution, guidance and valuable services
rendered by him during the tenure of the office of the Directorship.

Mr, Mudit Bajoria (DIN: 00015402) will retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
and bemg eligible, offer himself for re-appointment.

Ms. Sncha Sighania, Company Secretary resigned on 01/03/2023 and Ms. Sweta Sarraf is appointed on
same day in place of her. Ms. Sweta Sarraf, Company Secretary resigned on 29052023 and the
Company is in process to appoint a new Company Secretary.

As on 31.03.2023, the company had three Key Managerial Personnel, being Mr. Mr. Abhishek Dev.
Chiefl Executive Officer, Ms. Sweta Sarraf, Company Secretary and Mr. Praveen Kumar, CFO.

.



The Independent Directors have submitted their disclosure to the Board that they meet the criteria as
stipulated in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Details of the Board meeting and General meeting are given in Annexure — 1.
BOARD EVALUATION

The Board carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the Individual directors
as well as the working of the Committees of the Board. The performance evaluation of the Independent
Directors was carried out by the entire Board. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the non-
independent directors was carried out by the independent directors.

AUMT COMMITTEE

The Company is having an Audit Committee of the following Directors and the Committee met four
times during the year:-

Name of the Committee | Nature  of n;'l-er;'nijgr_shi;—)" Date of Meeting
Members Directorship 12.08.2022 [30.08.2022 112.11.2022 |14.02.2023
| MonExec
! Mrs Abha Bajoria A Member Present Present Present Present
e Director
| £ In nden
Mr.Ram Kishan Mowal dgpe e Chairman Present Present Present Present
Director
. Independent
Mr. Dhruv Bajoria R Member Present Present Present Present

* All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as follows and the committee met

thrice during the year:-

Mame of the Committee | Nature of . Date of Meeting
: : Membership =
. Members Directorship 05.04.2022 02.05.2022 ﬂl.BE.EUE
e Ind dent ;
| Mr .Dhruv Bajoria n l%pen o Chairman Present Present Present
I}lrccto[__
; . | t
Mr Ram Kishan Nowal ndgpenden Member Present Present Present
i I_:}lrecmr
Mrs Abha Bajoria L Member Present Present Present
=T Director

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS BY REGULATORS
Mo significant and material orders have been passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting

the going concern status of the Company and its operational in the future.

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12)
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES
(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014,

The required details are provided in Annexure “11I" annexed to this Report.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 5(2) AND 5(3) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT
AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

There is no employee drawing remuneration in excess of the limits prescribed under Rule 5(2) of The
Companies (Appointment} Rules, 2014. The required details are provided in Annexure “II" annexed to
this Report.

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRAIDING:

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduet for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate
trading in securities by the Directors and designated employees of the Company. The Code requires pre-
clearance for dealing in the Company’s shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company shares hy
the Directors and the designated employees while in possession of unpublished price sensitive
information in relation to the Company and during the period when the Trading Window is closed.

All the Directors and designated emplovees have confirmed compliance with the Code.
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The Company has following systems and processes in place so as to implement effective and robust
internal financial controls:

Policies : Key policies are defined, understood and enforced in the organization.

Operating Procedures : Clearly defined, detailed and harmonized procedures have been devised and
Implemenied across the organization.

Behaviour : The culture of compliance with laid down guidelines and procedures is evident through the
actions and behavior of individuals and teams.

Clearly defined roles and responsibilities : Roles and responsibilitics are clearly defined for cach and
every employee of the company. It helps the employees in understanding and adhering to the applicable
systems and processes.

Further, during the year the company appointed M/s Sushmita Mukhopadhyay & Associates, Chartered
Accountants. Kolkata as an Internal Auditor, The firm is authorized by the Audit Committee to access
the adequacy and compliance of internal conirol process. statulory requirements etc. The Audit
Committee met regularly to review reports submitted by the Internal Auditor. The Audit Committee
upon discussion with Internal Auditor set up applicable control measures for the Company.

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

The Company promotes ethical behavior in all its business activities and has put in place a mechanism
for reporting illegal or uncthical behavior. The Company has a Vigil mechanism and Whistle blower
policy under which the employees are free to report violations of applicable laws and regulations and the
Code of Conduct. The reportable matters may be disclosed to the Ethics and Compliance Task Force
which operates under the supervision of the Audit Committee. Employees may also report to the
Chairman of the Audit Committes. During the vear under review, no employee was denied access to the
Audit Commillee,

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

Pursuant to section 134(3) (n) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of directors of the Company has
adopted a Risk management Policy of the Company. The Company manages, monitors and reports on
the principal risks and uncertainties that can impact its ability to achieve its strategic objectives.

The Company has introduced several improvements to Integrated Enterprise Risk Management, Internal

Controls Management and Assurance Frameworks and processes to drive a common integrated view of
risks. optimal risk mitigation responses and efficient management of internal control and assurance
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activities. This integration is enabled by all three being fully aligned across Group wide Risk
Management, Internal Control and Internal Audit methodologies and processes.

ISSUE OF SHARES:

During the Financial vear ended 31% March, 2023

i} The Company has not granted any Employees Stock Option.

i} The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares,

iii) The Company has not issued any equity shares with differential rights.

iv) The Company has not allotted any bonus shares during the vear,

¥) The Company has not redeemed any Preference Shares during the vear.

CODE OF CONDUCT:

The Company has a Code of Conduct which is applicable to directors and management personnel of the
Company. The Company believes in conducting business in accordance with the highest standards of
business ethics and complying with applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Code lays down the standard procedure of business conduct which is expected to be followed by the
directors and management personnel in their business dealings and in particular on matters relating

mtegrity in the work place, in business practices and complying with applicable laws etc.

All the directors and management personnel have submitted declaration confirming compliance with the
code.

DETAILS REGARDING SUBSIDIARIES:

The Company not has any Subsidiaries Company/Associate Companies/Joint Venture during the
financial vear.

DEPOSITS
The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year under review.,
GOING CONCERN STATUS

No significant and material orders have been passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting
the going concem status of the Company and its operation in the future.

MATERIAL CHANGES AFTER END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR
No Material changes and commitments which could affect the financial position of the Company, have

occurred between the end of the last financial year and the date of this Annual Report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENT

The Particulars of loans, guarantees and investment have been disclosed in the financial statements for
the vear ended on 31® March 2023.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All contracts/arrangements/iransactions entered by the company during the financial year with related
parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. During the year, the
company had not entered into any contracts/arrangements/transactions with related parties which could
be considered material in accordance with the policy of the company on materiality of related party
Iransaclions.

16



Your directors draw attention of the members to Note no. 34 to the financial statement which sets out
related party transactions disclosures.

AUDITORS

M/s. Basu Chanchani & Deb, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 304049E) Kolkata were
appointed by the Members at the 143" Annual General Meeting as Statutory Auditors of the Company.,
to hold office until the conclusion of 148th Annual General Meeting to be held in 2024, The Company
has received confitmation [rom the (irm to the effect that their continuing appointment, would be within
the prescribed limit under the Companies Act, 2013,

BRANCH AUDITORS
M/s B.C. Kundu & Co. Chartered Accountants, retire and are cligible for re-appointment.
AUDITORS REPORT

The observations of the Auditors in their Report are self~explanatory and therefore, need no further
explanation. As regards, procedural lapses are concerned, effective steps are being taken to remove those
lapses. As regards Gratuity the Company has always treated Gratuily in the accounts on cash basis,
Since the wvalue of the Gramity as on 31.03.2023, does not fully relate to the current year, the
Management decided not to provide the value of Gratuity as on 31.03.2023.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

In terms of the requirement of Section 204 of the Companies Act. 2013 the Secretarial Audit of the
Company for the vear ended on 31* March 2023 was conducted by Babu Lal Patni, Company Secretary.
The Secretarial Auditor’s Report is attached to this report as Annexure Il and forms part of the
Director’s Report. As regards, procedural lapses are concerned, effective steps are being taken to remove
those lapses.

ANNUAL RETURN

A copy of Annual Return is hosted on company s website at www leestavalley net.
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The required details are provided in Annexure “IT" annexed to this Report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

A statement giving details of conservation of energy and technology absorption and foreign exchange
earnings and outgo in accordance with Rule 8 (3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is attached
to this report as Annexure V.

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES

Your Company's Shares arc tradable compulsorily in electronic form under ISIN No INE 7I8E01011
and your Company has established connectivity with Central Depository Services (India) Limited
(CDSL).

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Industrial Structure, Development opportunity and Outflow

We were able to improve upon Tea qualities by undertaking sound agricultural formalities timely. The
production of Tea Fstates in Darjeeling district as a whole was satisfactory during the year. Duc to
implementation of better agricultural technology your company was able 1o achieve higher production.
The company has both short-term and long-term vision 1o keep the tea bushes in good heart by uprooting
and replanting the old ones. For which price realizalion was better than the previous year.
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The factories on both the gardens are large, spacious and equipped with the latest machineries in each
department. In fact, our two factories should serve as model tea factories in the Darjeeling District.

With cheerful workers and staff, with beautiful plantation and with excellemt factories on both the
gardens, the future of the property will continue 1o remain bright and cheerful.

Risk Concerns and Threats

Your Company has two Tea Plantation unit i_e. Teesta Vally and Geille for producing quality of Teas in
this competitive market the Company needs huge capital investments and also for replacement of its
existing technology and machines. Though the Company has the comandable market in the Tea Industry,
the fluctuation in the Capital Market and current recession leads 1o lowering the buying capacity of
customers may lead to declining in the profits of the Company. Though the Company has a very
reputation in the locality and vicinity of the Tea Plantation. a permanent solutions to the disturbance of
the Darjeeling and Siliguri area by the Government will definitely works towards the advantage of the
Company’s performance and revenue.

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS
‘The Company has a large work force employed on tea estates. The welfare and well being of the workers
are monitored closely.

In terms of requirements of Section 4 of the Sexual Harassment of Woman at workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 the company has formed Internal Complaints Committees for ils
workplaces. During the year, no complaint regarding sexual harassment was received by the said
committees.

Your Board of Directors wish 10 place on record its sincere appreciation for the dedicated services
rendered by the executives, stafT and workers at all levels for smooth functioning of the tea estates.

Registered Office : Bharat Bajoria Mudit Bajoria Ram Kishan Mowal
3, Netaji Subhas Road. Director Director Direcior
Kolkata - 700 001. DIN : 00109241 DIN - 00015402 DIN : Q0310028

Dated 217 August, 2023
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ANNEXURE- I

PARTICULARS OF BOARD MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR ENDED 318!

MARCH, 2023
Date of e — Mudit Abha Dhruov R.K.
SN Meeting _B' Bijoria. | RK Bixit Bajoria Bajoria Bajoria Nowal
1 | 05.04.2022 Present Present Present Present Present Present
2 ]02.05.2022 — Present -— Present Present Present
3 130052022 Present Present Present Present | Present Present
4 |12.08.2022 — - Present Present Present Present
5 130.08.2022 Present Present Present Present Present Present
6 12.11.2022 —-- — Present Present ---- Present
7 | 14.02.2023 Present Present | Present Present Present Present
§ |28.02.2023 Present _Present Present | Present | Present Present
| 9 101.03.2023 | — Present | Present Present — Present

PARTICULARS OF GENERAL MEETINGS HELD DURING THE LAST THREE

FINANCIAL YEARS
S.No Fi’,:,i';’f‘“ i ;;3;‘;:“';'; Date - Time Venue
|| 20202021 | AGM TPt | n300mm JEEESIT?EE <
2 | 2021202 | AGM 39”1 Sspromber. | 03.00 PM. 3?:&3“_%
32021202 | EGM 28" ;32;‘“’}’ 03.00 P.M 3‘%‘1?;&“_1";‘33 %ﬂ“?‘j’
| 4 | 2022053 | AGM 307 5;3;‘;‘“"”‘ | 03.00PM 32?}?;‘1"233 ﬁg?d‘
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ANNEXURE-II

INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 197( 12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,2013
READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES ,2014

(1) Ratio of the remuneration of each Director/KMP to the median remuneration of all the
employees of the Company for the financial year:

| Rs 82,070/
Median remuneration of afl the employees of the Company For the financial year 2022-2023
. . 14.01 % ]
The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial vear
1676
The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company as on 31 March 2023
Ratio of N % increase in ]
remuneration to | remuneration in
Name of Director median | the financial
remuneration of | year 2022-2023
all employees
Non Executive Directors
Mr Bharat Bajoria = No Increase |
Mrs. Abha Bajoria 024:-1 | No Increase
| Mr. Mudit Bajoria 0.18: ] No Increase
Mr. Radhey Kant Dixit 0.12: 1 No Increase |
Edepcndent Directors
| Mr. Dhruv Bajoria 0.12:1 No Increase
Mr. Ram Kishan Nowal 0.24: 1 No Increase
Key Managerial Person !
Mr. Abhishek Dev, CE O 10.87: 1 100 %
Mr. Praveen Kumar, C F O : 435211 No Increase
Ms Sneha Singhania, Company Secretary 1.61:1 ‘No Incrcase
) I
Ms Sweta Saraf, Company Sccretary 0.15:1 I! 100%

Notes:

1) The ratio of remuneration to median remuneration is based on remuneration paid during the
period 1% April 2022 to 31¢ March 2023.

(2) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile
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increase in the managerial remuncration and justification thereof and point out if there
are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:
Average percentile made in the salaries of employees other than the Key managerial personnel
in the last financial year i.c 2022-23 was 14.01% where as the increase made in the Key
managerial remuneration for the same financial vear was Nil ).

(3) Remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company: The remuneration

paid during the financial year ended 315 March 2023 is in terms of the Remuneration P

the Company.

olicy of

(4) DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 5(2) AND 3(3) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND

REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 -

_A. List of top 10 Employees:-
Name ofthe | Designation | Remunera | Nature of Qualificatio | Date of Age | Last MName of
Employee tion Paid* | Employment, | nsand commence lyea | employment the
whether Experience | ment of rs) held before Director
contractual or employment joining the of the
otherwise Company Company
whao is
s T relative
. Jayshres Tea
Abhishek 92, Emnpl A 022004 i LA
ishek Doy | CEO ] 8.92,000 mployees B 16.02.2 51 & industiies N.A
Joy Manager-
Majmider Marketing 8,446,000 Emploves B.Se. 15.06.2002 B0 HMP Group MN.A.
L 1 o Darjee'ling
Assis
Umnesh Thapa m::““t 507,750 | Employee BEA 01.022021 |37 | OrganicTea | NA
e Estate Pvt Ltd |
Maveen Assistant
Kumar Karan | Manager 502,200 Employes B.5c. 14.02.2022 51 Gyabaree TE M.A
Birendra SEior
: Assistant 4,580,000 Employee H.5 01.01.1981 | MN.A M.A,
Chhetri
Manager
Assistant
; B, 05.12.2 MLA, A
M K Mothay Nisnages 4,34 000 Employae B.5c D06 1] N
|  Assistant =
E..I.a..Tam ang Nishagss 3,81,750 Employeas B.A 01.12.1984 i) M.A, MLA,
Pravesn : Davenport &
Kiiniar CFO 3,?1,@ Employee B.Com. 01.0:.2022 27 COLF".I'L Ltd. M.A
Santa Kumar | Assistant
12} B.A, 1.04, MN_A. N_A.
Tamang | Manager 3,1 0,201_3 Employee 01.04,2019 61
Secretary of The Bormah
Babu Daniel EEE; i 2,658,000 Employee B.Com. 07012017 ] Jan Tea Co. M.A
i | (1936] Ltd.

* Remuneration includes salary, allowances, bonus and value of certain perquisites evaluated on
the basis of Income Tax Act and Rules.

B. There is no employee employed throughout the financial ycar who was in receipt of
remuneration in excess of one crore and two lacs rupees per annum.

C. There is no employee employed for a part of the financial year who was in receipt of
remuneration in excess of eight lacs and fifty thousand rupees per month.
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TEESTA VALLEY TEA CO LTD
3 NETAJI SUBHAS ROAD
KOLKATA — 700 001

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31T MARCH, 2023

BABU LAL PATNI
COMPANY SECRETARY
51, NALINI SETT ROAD

5™ FLOOR, ROOM NO-19

KOLKATA - 700 007

ANNEXURE-III
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BABU LAL PATNI 51, NALINI SETT
ROADCOMPANY SECRETARY 5™ FLOOR, ROOM NO 19

KOLKATA - 700 007
TEL NO: 2259-7715/6
Email id: patnibi@®yahoo.com

FORM No MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2023

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

To,

The Members,

Teesta Valley Tea Co Litd
3 Netaji Subhas Road
Kolkata - 700 001

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by Teesta Valley Tea Co Ltd (hereinafter called the
company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.
Based on my verification of the Teesta Valley Tea Co Litd’s books, papers, minute books, forms
and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided
by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period
covering the financial year ended on 31% March, 2023, generally complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also the Company has proper Board processes and compliance
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafier:

I have examined the books, papers. minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by Teesta Valley Tea Co Lid (“the company™) for the financial year ended on 317
March, 2023 according to the provisions of:

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (*SCRA™) and the rules made
thereunder:

ii1) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings.

V) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act. 1992 (*SEBI Act™):
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Vi)

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 20135;

¢) *The Sccurities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

d) * The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021;

¢) *The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Sccurities)
Regulations, 2008;

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
clients:

g) *The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2021;

h) *The Seccurities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
2018: and

i) *The Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
securities) Regulations, 2021;

J) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosurc
Requirements) Regulations, 20135.

* No event took place under these regulations during the audit period.
The other laws that are applicable and complied by the company are:
i) The Tea Act, 1953

1) Food Safety Standard Act, 2006.

1ii) Plantations Labour Act, 1951

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

1) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

i1) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with the Calcutta Stock
Exchange.

iii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Repulations. 2015.

During the period under review except in some cases the Company has generally complied with
the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines. Standards, etc. mentioned above
subject to the following observations:
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I. The Company has not complied with the various provisions of the Regulations and
Guidelines preseribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 and
the Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with Calcutta Stock Exchange.

2. In some cases the Company has not complied with the provisions of Secretarial
Standards relating to the meeting of the Board of Directors and Committees thereof.

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Exccutive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition
of the Board of Dircctors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

The management has certified that, adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. However, in some
cases the same were not available for my verification.

Majonty decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are captured
and recorded as part of the minutes.

I further report that to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and guidelines needs to be further improved so as to commensurate with the size and operations
ol the Company.

I further report that during the Audit period there was no other spécific events/actions having a
major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws. rules.
regulations, guidelines. standards etc.. referred to above.

Place: Kolkata Signature;
Dated: 3" July, 2023
Name of the Company
Secretary in practice: BABU LAL PATNI

FCS No 1 2304

C.P.No. : 1321

P.R. No. ;145572021

UDIN : FOO2304E000535155

Note:

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms
an integral part of this report.
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BABU LAL PATNI 51, NALINI SETT ROAD
COMPANY SECRETARY 5™ FLOOR, ROOM NO 19

To,

KOLKATA - 700 007
TEL NO: 2259-7715/6
Email id: patnibl@yahoo.com

‘Annexure A’

The Members,

Teesta Valley Tea Co Ltd
3 Netaji Subhas Road
Kolkata-700001

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

L

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these sceretarial records based on
my audit.

I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain rcasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. |
believe that the processes and practices, | followed provide a reasonable basis of my
opinion.

[ have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

Where ever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules, and regulations and happenings of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited
to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the company.

Signature:

Babu Lal Patni

Practising Company Secretary

FCS No- 2304

Certificate of Practice Number-1321

Date: 3 July, 2023

Place: Kolkata
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TEESTA YALLEY TEA COMPANY LIMITED

ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERCY

ANNEXURE -1V

Appropriate steps have been taken for conservation, viz-a-viz improved utilisation of energy by adopting better
technigues and replacing old machinery and/or equipment where Necessary.

(B) RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R & D}

(i) No technology has been imported during last five years.

(i} The Company subscribes to Tea Research Association within

the meaning of Section 35( 1) of the Income Tax Act.

(Cy TFOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Total foreign exchange used and carned

FForeign exchange used NI

Foreign exchange camed NIL
Registered Office : Bharat Bajoria
3. Netaji Subhas Road, [Dhrector
Kolkata - 700 001. DIN : 00109241

Dated :21* August, 2023

2%

Mudit Bajoria
Director
DIN - 00015402

Ram Kishan Nowal
Director
DIN : 00310028



BASU CHANCHANI & DEB BASU HOUSE

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 3, CHOWRINGHEE APPROCH, KOLKATA-T00072
Phone : 033-2212-6233, 2212-8016
E-mail : la.bed 197 3@ email com
www basuchanchanianddeb.org

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF TEESTA VALLEY TEA COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements of Teesta Valley Tea Company Limited
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Teesta Valley Tea Company Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 3/ March 2023, the statement of profit and loss
(including other comprehensive income), the statement of changes in Equity and the cash flow statement
for the year on that date, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statement™).

In our opinion and to the best of information and according to the explanations given to us and subject to
things stated on the basis of Qualified Opinion, the aforesaid financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended {“Ind AS™) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2023 the

Loss, comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of the
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with independence requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the linancial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 1o
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements. Gratuity has not been provided on
actuarial basis as required under Ind AS - 19, the quantum lying unprovided for not being readily

ascertainable.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our

audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our

audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming of opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our

report.

| Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

A, Revenue Recognition

Revenue for the company consists primarily of
sale of products.

Revenue from the sale of products is recognized
at the moment when performance obligation of
the underlymg products has been completed.

Further, the company focuses on revenue as a
key performance measure. Thercfore, revenue
was our area of focus included whether the
accruals were misstated and appropriately
valued, and whether the significant transactions
had been accurately recorded in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Replantation subsidies are recognized on Cash

basis due 10 uncertainty of realizations.

Refer corresponding note for amounts recognized
as revenue from sale of products.

Our key procedures included the following :

a)

b)

¢)

d)
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Assessed the appropriateness of the company’s
revenue recognition accounting  policies, by
comparing with the applicable accounting standards:

Tested the operating effectiveness of the general IT
control environment and key 1T application controls
over recognition of revenue.

Performed test of details:

i) Agreed samples of sales to

supporting
documentation and approvals; and ‘

Performed focused analvtical procedures:

1} Compared the revenue for the current year with
the prior year for variance/ trend analysis and
where relevant, completed further inquiries and
testing 1o comroborate the variances by
considering both intemal and external
benchmarks, overlaying our understanding of
industry; and

Considered the appropriatencss of the company’s
description of the accounting policy, disclosures
related to revenue and whether these are adequately
presented in the financial statement.




B. Litigations and claims — provisions and
contingent liabilities

As disclosed in Notes detailing contingent
liability, the company is involved in direct,
mndirect tax and other litigations (*litipations’) that
are pending with different statutory authorities.

Whether a liability is recognized or disclosed as a
contingent liability in the financial statements is
inherently judgmental and dependent on a number
of significant assumptions and assessments.

The amounts involved are potentially significant
and determining the amount, if any, to be
recognized or disclosed in  the financial
slatements. is inherently subjective.

Our key procedures included the fhllewing:

e Assessed the appropriates of the company’s
accounling policies, including those relating to

provision and contingent liability by comparing with

the applicable accounting standards;

® Assessed the company process for identification
of the pending litigations and completeness for
financial reporting and also for monitoring of
significant developments in relation to  such
pending litigations:

* Engaged subject matter specialists to gain an
understanding of the current status of litigations
and monitored changes in the disputes, i’ any,
through discussions with the management and by
reading external advice received by the company,
where relevant, 1o establish that the provisions had
been appropriately recognized or disclosed as
required;

= Assessed the company’s assumptions and estimates
in respect of litigations, including the liabilitics or
provisions recognized or contingent liabilities
disclosed in the financial statements. This involved
assessing the probability of an unfavorable
outcome of a given proceeding and the reliability
of estimates of related amounts;

* Performed  substantive  procedures on the
underlying calculations supporting the provisions
recorded:

* Assessed the management’s conclusions through
understanding precedents set in similar cases; and

Considering the appropriateness of the company’s
description of the disclosures related to litigations and
whether these adequately presented in the financial
statements.

| C. Evaluation of uncertain tax provisions

The Company has material uncertain tax provisions
including matters under dispute which involves
significant judgment to determine the possible
outcome of these disputes.

Refer Mote No 38 of the financial statements.

Principal Audit procedures

Obtained details of completed tax assessments and
demands for the up to the ended of March 31, 2023 from
management. We involved our internal experts to
challenge the management’s underlying assumptions in
estimating the tax provision and the possible outcome of
the disputes. Our internal experts also considered legal
precedence and other rulings in evaluating management’s
position on these uncertain tax positions. Additionally,
we considered the effect of new information in respect of
uncertain tax positions as at April 1, 2019 to evaluate
whether any change was required to management’s
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| position on these uncertainties.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis.
Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s

Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thercon.

In conncetion with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and. in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to

be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this

other information. we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
companies in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.
The respective Board of Directors of the companies are also responsible for maintenance of the
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of
the companies and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies, making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors of the company is responsible for
assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters

related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
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intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that

meludes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and arc considered material if, individually or in the

aggrcgale, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidenee that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion. forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls rclevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act. we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company which has companies incorporated
in India, has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of

such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
hased on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, il such disclosures are inadequate, to

modify our opinion. Our conclusions are hased on the andit evidence obtained up to the date of our
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auditor’s reporl. However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue
4% 4 going concern.
¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in

a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matier that may be reasonably be bought to bear on our independence.

and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the
currcnt period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when. in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh

the public interest benefits of such communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that -

a) We have sought and obtaincd all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposces of our audit of the aforesaid financial

statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the

aforesaid financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those

books.

¢) Accounts of Branches audited by the branch Auditors u/s 143 (8) of the Companies Act. 2013

have been sent to us under the provisions of the said section.
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d)

€}

2)

h)

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of

preparation of the linancial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under

Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023

{rom being appointed as a dircetlor in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure 17. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating

effectiveness of the company’s internal [inancial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the

provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

With respect lo the other matiers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The financial stalements disclose impact of pending litigations on the financial position of

the company in note no.38 of financial statement.

1i. The company has not entered into long term contracts or derivative contracts.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred. to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the company.

iv. No fund has been advanced or loaned or invested by the Company to or in any other entity
or person including foreign entities or security as undertaken by the management, except

provide guarantee to HDFC on behalf of M/s Teesta Valley Exports Ltd. on Working
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i,

vii.

wiii,

viii.

Capital Limit by them_ (Refer to note no 38)

No fund has been received by the Company from foreign entities or provide any guarantee

or security as underlaken by the management but the Company have taken loan [rom

Directors and entities during the vear details are as below:-

(Refer to Note No.22)

Loan From Director

Mrs. Abha Bajoria Rs.34.00.000/-
Mr. Bharat Bajoria Rs. 13,00.000/-
Mr. Ram Kishan Nowal Rs. 10,00,000/-

Ll [ —

Loan From Related Party (Entities)
The Budge Budge Investment Co. Pvt. Ltd. Rs.21,50,000/-

1

2. Orlando Holding Ltd. Rs.54,50,000/-
3. Mohanbari Investment Pvi, Lid. Rs. 70,00,000/-
4. Zen Industrial Services Lid. Rs.14.00,000/-

Mothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representation under

clause (iv) and (v) above contain any matenal misstatement.

Mo dividend or part was declared by the Company during the year as per Section 123
of Companics Act, 2013.

Management has represented that to the best of its knowledge and belief no funds
other than those disclosed in accounts has been advanced or loaned or invested by the
Company to or in any other person or entity including foreign entity with the

understanding that the intermediary shall:

= Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Company

or

« Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalt of the Ultimate
Beneliciaries;

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belict, no

funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including

forcign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in

writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:
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» Directly or indircctly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Funding
Party or
e provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and
X1. During application of Audit procedure as being considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under (v) and (vi) above contain any material mis-statement.
xii.  Since requirement of maintenance of accounting software which has a feature of audit
trail under Rule 3 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 has been deferred from financial
vear commencing from 01 April, 2022 to financial yvear commencing from 01 April, 2023,
reporling under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicablc
for the financial year ended 31 March, 2023.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”™) issued by the
Central Government n terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in *Annexure 2" a

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Basu Chanchani & Deh
Chartered Accountants

UDIN : 23053036BGWOYC9522 R.No J4049E
Place : Kolkata {Samir Kumar Ghosh)
Date : 21st August, 2023, Partner

(M.N0.053036)
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BASU CHANCHANI & DEB BASU HOUSE

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 3, CHOWRINGHEE APPROCH, KOLKATA-700072
Phone : 033-2212-6253, 2212-8016
E-mail : la.bed 1973 i@ gmail.com
www.basuchanchanianddeb.org

Annexurce-1

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) referred to in Para V (2) (f) of our report of even date.

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Teesta Valley Tea Company
Limited (“the Company™) as of 31% March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of IND AS financial

statements of the Company for the vear ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for cstablishing and maintaining internal financial controls
hased on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the “Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial

Controls over Financial Reporting™ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of

reliable Ninancial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of

Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on

Auditing. issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of

Internal Financial Controls and. both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
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financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material

respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the imtemnal

financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of

material misstatement of IND AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting,.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the rehiability ol financial reporting and the preparation of IND AS

financial statements for external purposcs in accordance with gencrally accepted accounting principles.

A company's internal fnancial control over hinancial reporting includes those policies and procedures

that:

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 1o permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the

financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has. in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over Nnancial reporting were operaling
effectively as at 31" March 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of

Chartered Accountants of India.

For Basu Chanchani & Deb

Chartered Accountants

UDIN : 23053036BEGWOY9522 R.No304049E
Place : Kolkata (Samir Kumar Ghosh)
Date : 21st August, 2023. Partner

(M. No.053036)
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BASU CHANCHANI & DEB BASU HOUSE
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 3, CHOWRINGHEE APPROCH, KOLKATA-700072

Phone : 033-2212-6253, 2212-80116
E-mail : la.bed 1973 @gmail.com
www basuchanchanianddeb.org

ANNEXURE 2

Report on the matters specified in Paragraphs 3 and 4 of THE COMPANIES (AUDITOR’S
REPORT) ORDER, 2020, referred to in Para V (1) of our report of even date

IL.

IV.

a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of its property, plant & equipment (PPE). The
Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets.

b) Property. plant & cquipment have been physically verified by the management at
rcasonable intervals. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

¢) The title deeds of immovable property are held in the name of the Company.

d) None of the items of PPE (including ROU assets) or intangible assets has been revalued
during the year.

¢} No proceedings has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any
benami property under the BENAMI Transaction (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules
made thereunder.

a) The inventories have been physically verified at reasonable intervals during the vear by the
management. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification between the physical stock and

book records were not material and have been properly deali with in the books of accounis.

b) The Company has obtained working capital loan from Bank or Financial Institutions of
Rs.57.00,000.

The Company has not granted any loans, scoured or unsecured to companics, firms, limited
liability partnership or other partics listed in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Companics Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraphs 3(ii), 3(iti)(a) to 3(ii1)(c) of the

said order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
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provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans, investments,

guarantees and securities as applicable.

V. The Company has not accepted deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73 to
76 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder to the extent notified. Accordingly. paragraph
3(V) of the Order is not applicable.

Vi. On the basis of records produced we are of the opinion that prima facie cost records and
accounts prescribed by the Central Government under sub section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of products of the company covered under the rules under said
section have been made and maintained. However we are neither required to carry out nor have

carried out any detailed examination of such accounts and records.

VII. a) According to information and explanations given to us. the company is generally
regular in depositing with appropriate authorities, undisputed statutory ducs liability
including Provident Fund, Income tax, GST, Custom Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess,
Labour Welfare Fund. Investor Education & Protection Fund and other material
statutory dues as applicable to it, except as stated below, where dues overdue &

outstanding over six months as on 31-03-2023 has been reported :-

Provident ’ Period March'l9 to| Rs.1,43,13,699/-
Fund March'22 _
Provident Teesta Arrear Wages (Jan22 — Rs.9,49 676/-
Fund Valley Tea | Aug22) 5
Land Rent Estate Upto March’23 Rs.66,653/-
l o -
i Provident Period March'l9 to| Rs.1,15,63,964/
| Fund March22
WB Gielle Tea | Upto March™23 Rs.2,95,427/-
Welfare Estate
Fund ¥
Land Rent | Upto March23 Rs.44,910/ -
I

b) The dues on account of Agriculture Income Tax, Income Tax and Provident Fund disputed by the

company and not being paid, vis-a-vis forums where such disputes are pending are mentioned below -
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Tax

| Name of the Statute | Nature of dues Amount Period to which Forum where
(Rs.in “000) the amount relates dispute is pending |
Income Tax ;
Income Tax Act.1961 | Short Deposit of TDS 123.57 1993-1994 IT Officer (TDS)
Income Tax Act, 1961 Assessment Dues 4162 62 2013-2014 C 1T (Appeals)
[ncome Tax Act, 1961 Assessment Dues 319,53 20142015 CIT (Appeals)
_Agri-:ulture Income ]
Tax :
Agriculture Income AGIT 80.34 1975-1976 Assessing Officer

VHI. There has not been any unrecorded transaction in the books of Accounts which has
been surrendered or disclosed as income in tax assessment.
IX. a) The company has obtained loans from related parties.

b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulier by any bank or financial

institutions or by any lender.

¢) The Company has taken term loan and the amounts so borrowed have been

applied for the purpose for which it was obtained.

d) The fund raised on short term basis are generally not utilized for long term

purpose except for financing of loss.

¢) The Company has not taken any fund for any entity or person on account of or to

meet obligation of its subsidiary. It has no associate or Joint Venture.

t) The Company has not raised any loan during the year or taken securitics by its

subsidiaries,

X. a) The Company has raised no money by way of IPO or Further Public Offer during

the year but fresh issue of shares has been made to its parent company.

b) The Company has made no preferential allotment or Private Placement of shares

or convertible debentures during the year.

XI. a) No fraud has been notice or reported on or by the company during the year.
b) No report u/s 143 (12) of Companies Act 2013 has been filed by us during the

vear.

¢) Whistle Blower mechanism is not applicable for the company.
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AL

X111

XIV.

XV.

XVIL

AVIIL

XX,

XX.

XX

The managerial remuneration as per section 197 read with Schedule V of the

Companies Act 2013 is not applicable 1o the Company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is

nol applicable.

All the transaction with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and
188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details of related parly transaction have been
disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable Indian

Accounting Standards.

‘The company has an internal audit system.
The company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors.
The company has incurred cash losses in the financial year 2022-23.

There has been no instance of any resignation of the statutory auditors occurred

during the year.

No material uncertainty is observed and exists as on the date of the audit report that
company 15 capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as

and when they fall duc within a period of 1 year from the balance sheet date.

In respect of other than ongoing projects, the company has not transferred unspent
amount to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act within a period of
six months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with second proviso to

sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act;

a) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934.

b) The Company has not conducted any non-banking financial or housing financial
activities during the vear.

¢) Company 18 not a CIC as defined in the regulation made by RBI.

d) The Company does not have group which has a CIC as its member.
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XXII. There is no adverse comment of auditor pertaining to group companies except for the

ones appearing {or the Company under reference.

For Basu Chanchani & Deb

Chartered Accountants

UDIN : 23053036BGWOYC9522 R.No.304049E

Place : Kolkata {(Samir Kumar Ghosh)

Date : 21st August, 2023, Partner

(M.No.053036)
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TEESTA VALLEY TEA CO. LIMITED
3, Netaji Subhas Road, Kolkata - 700001

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2023

As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars Mote March,2023 March, 2022
Amount (Rs.in "000) | Amount (Rs.in "000)
| |ASSETS
1. Non-current Assets
Propery, Plant And Equipment 3! 2002,310.82 203.568.62
Capital Work in Progress 4 13,494 .37 -
| |Intangible Assets 5 73.33 120.61
Financial Assets
Investments B - -
Loans Fi 3,508.48 3,007.47
Other Fiancial Assets 8 123.57 12357
MNon Current Tax Assets (Net) g 2,650.25 1,538.88
Deffered Tax Assets (Met) - 2,588.82 2,680.10
Other Non Current Assets 10 £830.00 -
Total Mon Current Assets 225,629.86 211,639.45
2. Current Assets
Inventories 11 83,377.59 101,123.85
Biological Assets Other Than Bearer Plants 12 53,626.55 24,394.10
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables 13 = 2
Cash And Cash Equivalents 14 536.59 691.27
Other Bank Balances : = z
Loans 15 2.151.02 2.151.02
Other Flancial Assets 16 13,803.34 12,741.53
Current Tax Assels (Met) 17 4 623,93 4,352 00
Other Current Assets 18 B49.44 510.64
Total Current Assets 159.068.46 145,964.41
Total Assels 384,698.32 357,503.86

The accoompaning notes are an integral part of these financial staterments.
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Basu Chanchani & Deb

Chartered Accountants
R.No. 304045E

(Samir Kumar Ghosh)
FPartner
{M.No. 053036)

UDIN : 23053036BGWOYCO522
Place : Kolkata

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Bharat Bajoria Mudit Bajoria
Director Director Diractor
DIN : 00108241 DIM : 00015402

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dated : 215t August, 2023

A5

Ram Kishan Nowal

DIN : 00310028

Praveen Kumar
CFOQ




TEESTA VALLEY TEA CO. LIMITED
3, Netaji Subhas Road, Kolkata - 700001

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2023

As at 31st As at 31st

Particulars Note March, 2023 March,2022

Amount (Rs.in '000) | Amount (Rs.in "000)

Il |Equity And Liabilities

Equity
Equity Share Capital 19 1,500.00 1,500.00
Other Equity
Fesarve & Surplus 20 117,173.43 139,025.07
Total Equity 118,673.43 140,525.07
Liabilitias
Non Current Liabilities
Fianancial Liabilities
Barrowings 21 11,784.78 12.033.63
Provisions - -
Deflerred Tax Liabilities {(Met) - -
Cther Mon Current Liabilities -
Total Non Current Liabilities 11,784.78 12,033.63
Currgnt Liahilities
Fianancial Liabilities
Bomowings s 120,985.76 102,548 21
Trade Paybles 23 | 22,232.65 16,269.02
Other Financial Liabilities 24 977357 7.451.16
Other Curent Liabilities 25 100,837.31 77,6598
Pravisions & =
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 26 410.82 410.82
Total Current Liabilities 254,240.11 204,945.16
Total Liabiliteis - 266,024.89 216,975.80
Total Equity And Liabilitias 384,698.22 357, 503.86
Summery of Sigficant Accounting Policies 2

The accoompaning notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Basu Chanchani & Deb
Chartered Accountants
B.MNo, 304048E

[(Samir Kumar Ghosh)
Partner
(M.No. 053036)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Bharal Bajoria Mudit Bajoria Ham Kishan Nowal Praveen Kumar
LIDIM : 23053036BGWOYCIE22 Director Director Director CFO
Place ; Kolkata DIN = 00108244 DN - D0D15402 DM @ 00310028

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Dated : 215t August, 2023
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TEESTA VALLEY TEA CO. LIMITED
3: Netaji Subhas Road, Kolkata - 700001

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED ON 31st MARCH, 2023

. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars MNote March,2023 March, 2022
Amount (Rs.in "'000) | Amount (Rs.in "000)
INCOME ::
Revenue From Operalions 27 172.675.51 190,846 25
Other income 28 2.845.85 217.64
Total Revenue 175,522.26 191,063.89 |
EXPENSES ::
Change in Inventories of Finished Goaods 29 16,113.03 8,943.76
Change in Biological Assets 29A 129,232 45) (482,600
Employess Benefits Expenses a0 137,550.14 120,652.54
Finance Cosls 31 9204 47 8,355
Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses 3z 4.301.81 472353
Other Expenses 33 58 34582 53,733.81
Total Expanses 197,282.81 195,926.35
Profit Before Exceptional & Extra Ordinary items (21,760.45) (4,862 .45)
Exceptionzl ltems - =
Extra Ordinary ltems - =
Profit Before Tax (21,760.45) [4,562.46)
Tax Expenses :
Income Tax - 1.100.00
Agricultural Income Tax - =
Deferred Tax including MAT (Depreciation) 91.18 (104.73)
Profitf {Loss) For The Year (21,851.63) (5.857.73)
Other Comprehesive Income :
{a) ltems that will not be reclassified fo Profit or Loss
Remeasuraments of post employment defined benefits plans - »
(k) Changes in fair value of Equity Instruments through
Other Comprhensive Income - -
Cther Comprehesive Income! (Loss) ) =
Total Comprehenssive Income For The Year (21,851.63) (5,857.73)
Eznings Per Eguily Share : (Mominzl WValue per share - Bs 100~
Before Exceptional ltems (Basic & Diluted) (0.15) {0.03)
After Exceptional Crdinary tems (Basic & Diluted) (0.15) (0.03)
Summery of Sigficant Accounting Policies 2

The accoompaning notes are an integral part of these financial staterments.
This is the profit & Loss Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For Basu Chanchani & Deb
Chartered Accountants

F.Mo. J04045E
(Samir Kumar Ghosh)
Partner
{M.No. 053036)

Bharat Bajoria Mudit Bajoria
UDIM : 23053036BGWOYC9522 Director Director
Place : Kolkata DM ; 00109241 DIN - 00015402

Dated : 212t August, 2023

43

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ram Kishan Nowal Pravesn Kumar
Director CFO
DI : 00510028



Teesta Valley Tea Co. Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity For The Year Ended on 31st March 2023

Particulars .Amnf' " Total
_ _ {in Rs."000) (in Rs."000)
Opening As on 1st April 2021 1,500.00 1,500.00
Add {Less) : Changes During The Year 2 R 3
Closing As on 31st March 2022 1,500.00 1,500.00
Opening As on 1st April 2022 1,500.00 1,500.00
Add (Less) | Changes During The Year = .
Closing As on 31st March 2023 1,500.00 1,5600.00
Other Equity :
D General Reserve | Retained Earnings CRR Total
_ (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.)
Opening As on 1st April 2021 7.500.00 137,382.B0 - 144 882 B0
Add : Transferred From Retained Earnings - (5,000.00) - (5,000.00)
Add : Items of Other Comprehensive Income Recognised
Directly in Retained Earnings - - - =
Add ' CRR - - 5,000.00 5,000.00
Add : Profit For The Year - {5,857.73) = {5,857.73)
Closing as on 315t March 2022 7.500.00 126,525.07 5,000.00 139,025.07
Opening As on 1st April 2022 7,500.00 126,525.07 5,000.00 139,025.07
Add : Transferred From Retzined Earnings = - = =
Add : Items of Other Comprehensive Income Recognised
directly in Retained Eamings - Z - -
Add : CRR - - - o
Add : Profit For The Year - (21,851.63) - {21,851.63)
Closing as on 31st March 2023 7,500.00 104,673.44 5.,000.00 117,173 44

The accoempaning notes are an integral part of these financial staterments.
This is the Statement of Change in Equity to in our report of even date.

For Basu Chanchani & Deb
Chartered Accountants
R.No, 304049E

{Samir Kumar Ghosh)
Partner
{M.No. 053036)

Bharat Eajoria
Director
DIM = 00109241

UDIN : 23053036BGWOYC9522
Place : Kolkata
Dated : 21st August, 2023

Mudit Bajorina

Director
DIN : D015402

48

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ram Kishan Mowal Praveen Kumar

Director
DIN : 00310028
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TEESTA VALLEY TEA COMPANY LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2023 {Indircet Methid)

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Met Prodit Before Taation And Extra-ordinary lems
Adjusiments For

1 Depreciation

2 Interest income
3 Interest Expenses

Operating Profil Before Worka Capital Changes
Adjusiment For

Trade & Current Reczivables

I
T liventories
3 Heological Assers
1 Fraide Payables
Cash Generited From Operations

Direc Taxes Paid
Cash Flow From Operating Activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

I Paymemt apainst acquisition of Ficed Assets
inchuding payrnent against capital labiling
Laong Term Borrowing

Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets
Envestmiend relisstions (made) during the year

o

CASI FLOY FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds Short Term Borrowings
Interest Received

Triterest Paid

Long Term Loan Received

R

wet Chanpe in Cash Ad Cash Equivalems
Cash & Caslh Equivalenis (Opening Balance)

Cash & Cash Eyurvalents (Closmg Balanos)

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS COMPRISE OF ;

Balances With Schedule Banks
Current Accounts

MABARD (TRAS- 2007 Account)

Cnsh in Hamd

Mates 2

Puarsanant tn

Lanse 57 of ¢ resmment
As at Asat Ag al A af
Flst March st March st March Flst March
2023 223 022 W22
Amt (Hs,in "000) Amt (Rs.in "000) Amt (Bs.dn "0} At (Rs.in 00
[21,760.45) {4,863 48)
4,301 .81 4,723,553
(254.30) {207.25)
S.204.47 1325198 835532 12 571.5%
[8.508.47) &,000.15
(1,358,237} (G861
17,746,246 666052
(29.232.45) (482.60)
3126829 (3116 K2
18423 83 TA0x. 50
PR1556 1040173
(1383400 2.5066.96)
B8.3531.95 804477
{ Lp A5 300 ) (8,504, 44)
{51.02) (5500
{RI0.00) =
(17.371.92) (5959 441
1817507 13,192 40
211596 TR AR
(9. 352.48) (7.607.36)
{48 85) (5,237.95)
B TH5 10 57506
{567 338.71
4,455 37 479398
4. 400 59 AA55.27
{5467} 338.70)
62015 H5%9 50
3,764,00 3,764 00
16,44 "
4.400,5% - 445527

I Above statements have besn prepared in indirect method excep in case of interest, dividend, purchase &
sale of investnents and faxes which have been considered on the basiz of sctual movement of cash, with

correspanding adjnstments n assols & Habilises.

T Cash & Cash Crpivalents consist of cash in hand, balance with Banks o deposns with MABARD,

Iepinning and end of the year and treated as part of myvestng activies

Fer Baaw Chanchani & Dub
Chartered Accoundants
R Ma, DMM9E

[Samser Kumar Ghash)
Paringr

(WL, 053056

Eharat Bagoria

LR 2EOASISERGWOY SR
Flace : Malkats
Daded @ T8t gt 2020

Direcor

[a L R [ ]

Muds Bagari
Drirecter
DN & (5407

3 Additions to Fixed assets are stated inclusive of movements of Capital work in progress betwesn

Fam Klshan Nowal
Director
DIN @ #33100ZE
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For and an behall of the Beard of Dirctors

Fravees Kuman
D



Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
1. BACKGROUND :

Teesta Valley Tea Company Limited (CIN: L15491WB1876PLC000347, PAN : AAACT 9762D) is a
public company limited by shares incorporated in India. The shares of the company are listed in
The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited (CSE).The company is engaged in cultivation,
manufacture and sale of black tea.

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES :

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
these financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2(A) Basis of Preparation :

Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements comply in all materials aspects with Indian Accounting Standards
(IND AS) notified u/s 133 of the companies Act, 2013 (“the act”) Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
(Amendments) Rules, 2016.

Classification of current and non-current

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Ind AS 1 — Presentation of financial
Statements and Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and
the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash
equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cyde as 12 months for the purpose of
current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Historical Cost Convention

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted
accounting principles in India under the historical cost convention, except for the following:

Biological assets (including unpiucked green leaves) — measured at fair value less cost to sell.
Bearer Plants — measured at fair value.
2(B) Segment Reporting :

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision maker.
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2(C) Foreign Currency Translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Indian Rupee (INR) which is the functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are recognized in
profit or loss.

2(D) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of
returns, claims and discounts to customers. Revenue excludes amounts collected on behalf of
third parties, such as Value Added Tax and Goods and Services Tax.

The Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it
isprobable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company and significant risk and
reward incidental to sale of products is transferred to the buyer.

2(E) Government Grants :

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognized in the profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and
presented within other operating income.

2(F) Accounting for Taxes on Income :

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s
taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred income tax is provided in full on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settied.
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax
losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those
temporary differences and losses.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

2(G) Inventories :

Raw materials including harvested tea leaves, produced from own gardens are measured at
lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost being the fair value less cost to sell at the point of
harvest of tea leaves.

Stores and Spare parts is valued at cost. Finished Goods is valued at estimated net realizable
value. Cost of Finished Goods comprise of direct material, direct labour and appropriate portion
of variable and fixed overhead expenditure. Cost of inventories also includes all other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Costs are assigned
to individual items of inventory on the basis of weighted average method. Net realizable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2(H) Biological Assets :

Biological Assets of the company comprises of unharvested Green Leaves. Tea leaves growing
on tea bushes are measured at fair value less cost to sell and cost to Manufacturewith changes
in fair value recognized in Statement of profit and loss.

2(I) Financial Assets:
Classification :
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income,
or through profit or loss), and those measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of cash flows.

Measurement :

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value. Transaction costs
of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.
Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash
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flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Assets that are held for collections
of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI). Interest income from these financial assets is included in
other income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or
FVTOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in other income.

2(]) Equity instruments :

The Company measures all equity investments (except subsidiary and associate) at fair value
through profit or loss. However where the Company’s management makes an irrevocable choice
on initial recognition to present fair value gains and losses on specific equity investments in
other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss.

Dividend income is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the right to receive
dividend is established.

2(K) Cash and Cash Equivalents :

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the
balance sheet.

2(L) Trade Receivables :

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment, if any.

2(M) Offsetting financial instruments ;

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in
the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.
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2(N) Impairment of financial assets :

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset (or a group of financial
assets) held at amortized cost and financial assets that are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income for impairment based on evidence or information that is available
without undue cost or effort. Expected credit losses are assessed and loss allowances
recognized if the credit quality of the financial asset has deteriorated significantly since initial
recognition.

2(0) Derecognition of financial assets :

A financial asset is derecognised only when the Company has transferred the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial asset, or retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of
the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more
recipients.

Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised. Where the entity has neither transferred
a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the
financial asset.

2(P) Financial liabilities :

Initial recognition and measurement :

The Company recognizes all the financial liabilities on initial recognition at fair value minus, in
the case of a financial liability not at fair value through Profit or Loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial liability.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent measurement :

All the financial liabilities are classified as subsequently measured at amortized cost, except for
those mentioned separately.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss :

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include finandial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabiliies are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the profit or loss.
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For liabilities designated as Fair Value through profit or loss, fair value gains/ losses attributable
to changes in own credit risk are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income. These
gainsflosses are not subsequently transferred to Profit or Loss. However, the Company may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability
are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2(Q) Property, Plant and Equipment :

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation and impairment,
if any. For this purpose, cost includes deemed cost which represents the carrying value of
property, plant and equipment recognized as at 1st April, 2016 measured as per the previous
generally accepted accounting principles and also includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Properties in the course of construction are carried
at cost, less any impairment loss.

An item of property, plant and eguipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of asset.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The camrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value : Deprecdiation is calculated
using the written down value method (except Bearer Plants and Intangible Assets which is
depreciated by using Straight Line Method) to allocate their cost, net of their residual values on
the basis of useful lives prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Item of Fixed
Assets for which related actual cost do not exceed Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of
purchase.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.
These are included in profit or loss within other income/expenses.

2(R) Bearer Plants :

Bearer plants comprising of mature tea bushes are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of uprooting of old tea bushes, rehabilitation of land, replanting and young tea upkeep
and maintaince upto year 3 for the year of planting are capitalized as mature plants, capital
work in progress. From year 4 onwards capital work in progress is treated as bearer plants and
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depreciated using Straight line method over the expected useful life of 150 years, when the
bearer plants reaches maturity stage with no residual value.

Costs incurred for infilling are generally recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2(S) Intangible Assets :

Computer Software : Costs associated with maintaining software programmes are recognized as
an expense as incurred. Costs of purchased software are recorded as intangible assets and
amortized from the point at which the asset is available for use.

Amortization methods and periods : The Company amortizes intangible assets with a finite
useful life using the straight-line method over 5 years.

2(T) Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, legal or constructive:
Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are
measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risk specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made when there is a possible obligation arising from
past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a

present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation and the likelihood of outflow of
resources is remote, no provision or disclosure for contingent liability is made.

Contingent Assets are not recognized but are disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

2(U) Employee Benefits:

Short-term Employee Benefits : These are recognized at the undiscounted amount as expense
for the year in which the related service is rendered.

Gratuity : Gratuity, if any, is being accounted for as and when paid.

Bonus : The Company recognizes a expense for bonuses as and when paid.
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2(V) Leases :

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred
to the Company as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made for renewal of
lease or rent on lease are charged to profit or loss. Depreciationon finance lease charged by
using Straight line method over the balance lease period.

2(W) Impairment of non-financial assets :

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in drcumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceedsits recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher on an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purpose of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows which are largely independent of the cash flows from other assets or
group of assets (cash-generating units). Non-finandal assets that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

2(X) Research and Development :

Revenue expenditure on Research and Development is recognized as a charge in the Statement
of Profit and Loss. Capital expenditure on assets acquired for Research and Development is
added to Property, Plant and Equipment, if any.

2(Y) Borrowing costs :

Interest and other borrowing costs attributable to qualifying assets are capitalized. Other
interest and borrowing costs are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

2(Z) CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS :

The preparation of the financial statements require the use of accounting estimates which, by
definition, will seldom equal the actual result. Management also needs to exercise judgment in
applying the Company’s accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a high degree of judgment or
complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and
assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information
about each of these estimates and judgments is included in relevant notes together with
information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.

Critical estimates and judgments : The areas involving critical estimates and judgments are :

Taxation : The Company is engaged in agricultural activities and accordingly, significant
judgment is involved in determining the tax liability for the Company. Also there are many
transactions and calculations during the ordinary course of business for which the ultimate tax

57



determination is uncertain. Further judgment is involved in determining the deferred tax
position on the balance sheet date.

Depreciation and amortization : Depreciation and amortization is based on management
estimates of the future useful lives of the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
Estimates may change due to technological developments, competition, changes in market
conditions and other factors and may result in changes in the estimated useful life and in the
depreciation and amortization charges.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment — impairment exists when the carrying value of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell
and its value in use.

Provisions and Contingencies Provisions and contingencies are based on Management's best
estimate of the liabilities based on the facts known at the balance sheet date.

Fair Value of Biological Assets The fair value of Biological Assets is determined based on recent
transactions entered into with third parties or available market price less cost of manufacture.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on
the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

2(ZA) RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS ENTAILING
INSERTION/MODIFICATION OF NEW/EXISTING ACCOUNTING STANDARDS :

Ind AS 116, Lease Accounting

(a) Definition of lease (financial and operating) has undergone change pursuant to mandating
of new standard negating the earlier one under Ind AS 17 (dropped) for relevant accounting
treatment.

(b) 1. Ind AS 12, Income Taxes — on application of appendix C on uncertainty over income tax
treatments.

2. Ind AS 23, Borrowing Costs — Laying down specific borrowings cost to be considered for
capitalization

3. Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments — on treatment of prepayment features with negative
compensation

4, Ind AS 19, Employee benefits — Dealing with plan amendment, curtailment or settlement
pertaining to defined benefit plan. The company is in the process of evaluating the impact of
such amendments.
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—w. Property, Plant And Equipment ¢

TEESTA VALLEY TEA CO. LIMITED

Amount (Re.in '000)

Gross Carrylng Amount

Accumlated Depreciation

Mat Carrying Amourt

S| A Salel | Gross Block SHIn
ross Cos owards : ross Bloc
Pariiculars of Asseis | Valueason | Acquisition Sub-Total Adjustmeant Sl Total as on For The |Adjustment| Total as on W.0.V as on W.D.V as on
01.04.2022 During The Curing The 31.03.2023 01.04.2022 Year During The | 31.03.2023 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
e Year Year
{Rs.) {Rs.) {Rs,) {Rs.) {Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.}) {Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.)
Leasshold Land 847.00 - 841.00 - 841.00 20282 48.77 - 341.38 498,681 E4B 38
Buildings 33,685.38 1,937.51 35,622.89 . 3562280 19,341 46 1720.75 - 21,071,214 14,551 68 14,343 .92
Plant & Machnery §,325.23 1.011.83 9,337.08 - 8,337.06 4,889.53 65403 - 5523 56 3,813.50 3456 70
Computer 177.16 47,20 22435 - 22435 120.08 3621 - 166.27 6508 57.10
Vehicles 360348 - 3,803 48 - 3,903 .46 2,524.08 279 .84 - 2,803.93 1,009 54 1,379.37
Furniture & Fixiures 285.96 - 286.08 - 286 86 150.08 11.72 - 161.77 125.19 136.91
Office Equipmeant 170.90 - 170.80 - 170.80 115,77 2095 = 136.71 34.149 5513
Walar Supply
Installation And 249.37 - 24937 - 24937 176.71 880 - 18551 63.88 72.68
Irrigation Equiprments
Bearar Plants 1,80,719.31 - 1,90,719.31 = 1,80,718.31 7,189 88 146427 - 8,664,132 18205518 1.83.518.45
Total 2,38,358.77 2,996.53 | 2,41,355.30 - 2,41,355.30 34,790.15 4,254.33 - 38,044.48 2,02,310.82 2,03,568.62

Mote : Leasehold Land relates to 717 40 Hectares & 486 84 Heclares of land respectively for Teesta Valley T.G. and Gielle T.G taken on lease from

Govt, of West Bengal at Rongli Rongliot In Darjeeling for period of 20 years w.e.f 12.08 2004 and 09.02, 2000 respactively.
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|3. Property, Plant And Equipment :

TEESTA VALLEY TEA CO. LIMITED

Amount (Rs.in '000)

Gross Carrying Amount

Accumlated Depreciation

Mat Carrying Amount

Addition

Gross Cost/ Towards S Gross Block .m.m_m___
Particulars of Assets | Value As on | Acquisition Sub-Total mn“__hn_ﬂﬂnn as on TRl E8.0n For the year Ad ..“_u::m:_ Lo .00 MY koo o WD 2m o
01.04.2021 Duting The gThe | .. 0q29002 01.04,2021 During The | 31.03.2022 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Year Year Year
(Rs.} {Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) {Rs.) (Rs.) {Rs.} {Rs.) (Rs.)
Leasshold Land 841.00 - 841.00 - 841.00 243.85 48,77 - 292,82 54538 897,18
Buildings 3368538 - 33,6B85.38 - 3388538 17,281.01 2,080.46 - 19.341.48 14,343 82 18,424 38
Plant & Machinery 8,284.03 41.20 B,325.23 - 832523 4,181.58 677.087 . 4.868.53 345570 408247
Computar 14470 d2.46 177.16 - 177.18 105.55 14 81 - 120.08 57.10 ag.15
Vehicles 3,803.46 - 3.903.458 - 3,803.48 2,152.15 371,84 - 252408 1,378.37 1,761.31
Furniture & Fixtures 286.96 - 286 95 . 286.96 13243 17.82 - 15008 136.91 154 .53
Office Equipmant 154,28 16.51 170 90 - 170.80 8168 3ace - 116 77 55.13 70.80
Water Supply
Installation And 248,37 . 249.37 - 24937 165,08 10.75 - 176 71 7286 B3.41
Irrigation Equipmants
Baarer Plants 1.81,851.74 B788.17 | 1,80,719.31 - 1,80,719.31 578372 1,406 14 - 7.190.88 1,83567845 1,76,167.42
Total 2,28,500.33 B,858.44 | 2,38,358.77 - 2,38,388.77 30,129.91 4,660.23 - 34,790.15 2,03,568.82 1,89,370.42

Mote : Leasehold Land relates to 71740 Heclares & 485.64 Hectares of land respaclively for Teesta Valey T.3. and Gialle T.G taken on lease from

Govt, of West Bengal at Rongli Rengliol in Darjeelng for peried of 30 years we.f 12.02 2004 and 09022000 respectively
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TEESTA VALLEY TEA CO. LIMITED.

4. Capital Work in Progress

s

Amount (Rs.in "000)

31st March 2023

3st March 2022

FParticulars
{Rs.) (Rs.)
Capital Work in Progress
Balance As Begning of The Year - -
Add : CWIP Addition During The Year 13,494 37 -
13.494,37 -

Less : Transfer To Property, Plant & Equipment - -
Balance As End of The Year 13,484 .37
Mote . The Capital work in Progress includes expenditure incurred duning
the current financial year relates to cost of Young Tea (Bearer Plants) Prior to
capitalisation at Teesta Valley And Gielle Tea Estate.

Total 13,494.37 -

Capital Work in Progress Ageing

As at 31.03.2023

As at 31.03.2022

Less Than 1 Year 13,494 37 -
1To 2 Years 2 =
2To 3 Years - -
More Then 3 Years = i

13,494.37 -

There are no Capital Work in Progress where completion is overdue against original planned timelines or where
estimeted cost exceeded its original planned cost as on 31st March 2023 and 31st March 2022,

6




5. Intangible Assets

TEESTA VALLEY TEA CO. LIMITED

Amount (Rs.in '000)

Gross Carrying Amount Accumlated Depreciation Met Carrying Amount
Add tion Adjusted
Salal Salel
Gross Costf Towards Gross Block With 3
i Yalue As on Acquisition Sub-Total _Wm____.m.”:._._._.m:_...m. As on Mﬂﬁ“mmﬂwm Far The Year| Reserve MM..M”.E._M_-H .““an_wm%n M“_w._ ____“._DcM MM mom_._
Particulars of Assels | g4 042022 | During The 9 31.03.2023 | O During The g S s
Yedar Year
Year Year
{Rs.) (Rs.) {Rs.) {Rs.) i{Rs.) {Rs.) {Rs.) iRs.) iRs.) {Rs.} {Rs.)
Computer Software 28 9z - G268 82 - 623.82 50811 47 48 - - 565,58 73.33
Total Assets 628.92 - 628.92 - 628.92 508.11 4T .48 - - 555,59 73,33
Mote : Computer Software is being amertised undar streight line metned over 5 years
TEESTA VALLEY TEA CO. LIMITED ol
0
. Intangible Assets Amount (Rs.in '000)
Gross Carrying Amount Accumlated Depreciation MNet Carrying Amount
Addition Adjusted
Sale/ . - Salel
Gross Cost Towards : Gross Block With
Particulars of Assets | Valus As on | Acguisition Sub-Total Wmﬁnﬁ:.__ﬂ:h As on ,_Hq___.,._;w__ammﬂmu For The Year| Reserve _Mn”__hm_z.__ﬂ” wwﬁmwwmowm __M_U_DH_M NMmumz
01.04.2021 | During The g .03.2022 | % During The ng PR e
Year Year
Year Year
(Rs.) {Rs.) (Rs.) {Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) {Rs.) {Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.} {Rs.)
Computer software 582,92 46.00 628.92 - 52892 444 32 §3.29 - - 508.11 120,81
Total Assets 582.92 46.00 628.92 - 628.92 444,82 63.29 - - 508.11 120.81

Mote | Computer Software is being amertized under strelght fing method over 5 years



TEESTA VALLEY TEA CO. LIMITED

[ 6. Non-Current Investments (Held at cost unless stated otherwise)

|

| Particulars

1 investment Cther Than Trade

31st March 2023
Amount (Rs.in "000)

31st March 2022 |
Amount (Rs.in '000)

Total E =
| 7. Loans (Unsecured & Considered Good) =
R Jist Harch1 2023 J1st March 2022
) Amount (Rs.in ‘000) | Amount {Rs.in "000)
Security Deposits 1,058.48 1,007 47
Court Depesit 2,500.00 2,500 00
Total 3,558.48 3,507.47
8. Other Financial Assets |
Particulars 31st uar:h_zuza 31st March 2022
Amount (Rs.in '000) | Amount {Rs.in "000)
Balanee in Current Account Attached By Fiscal Authorities 123.57 123,57
Total _ 123.57 123.57
| 9. Tax Assets (Net) i
Particulars 31st March_2l123 st Harch_EOZE
Amount (Rs.in "000} | Amount (Rs.in "000)
Advance Payment of Tax (Met of Provisions Rs.11,00,000/- 2.650.36 1.5358.88
P.Y Rs 11,00,000/-)
Total 2 65036 1,538.88

|_10. Other Non Current Assets

31st March 2023

J1st March 2022

Particulars :
Amount (Rs.in "000) | Amount (Rs.in "000) |
Fixed Deposit With The HDFC Bank (Matured After 12 Maonths) 530.00 -
Total 830.00 -
| 11. Inventories |
, 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Particulars i 3
Amount (Rs.in '000) | Amount {Rs.in '000)
Stock of Stores 281474 4 547 98
Finished Goods (Stock of Tea) 80462 85 96,575 88
Taotal 83,377.59 1,01,123.85

| 12. Biological Assets Other Than Bearer Plants

Particulars

31st March 2023
Amount (Rs.in "000)

31st March 2022
Amount (Rs.in '000)

Fair Value of Riological Assetz Other Than Bearer
Plants {LUinharvested Tea | eaves)

33.626.55

24 354 10

Total

53,526.55

24,384.10
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13. Trade Receivables

TEESTA VALLEY TEA CO. LIMITED

Particulars

31st March 2023
Amount (Rs.in '000)

31st March 2022
Amaount {Rs.in "000)

Othars Debts

Total

Trade Receivab

Outstanding For Following Periods From Due Date of Payments
More As at
Unhillad MNot Due
Less Than & Months & Months - 1 Year 1-2Years | 2-3Years| Than3 31.03.2023
Years
Trade Receivables - Unsecured
{a) Undisputed, Considerad Good - = : ; - c : g
{b) Undisputed, Considered Doubtful a 2 - - = z 2 Z
{c) Disputed, Considered Good - ‘ : : . : . -
(d) Disputea, Considered Doubtful - - E : : ; - 5,
Outstanding For Following Periods From Due Date of Payments
Unbilled |  Not Due More R
Less Than & Months & Months - 1 Year 1-2 Years | 2-3Years| Than?3 31.03.2022
Years

Trade Receivables - Unsecured

ta) Undisputed, Cansidered Good
ib} Undisputed, Considered Doubtiul
ic) Disputed, Censidered Good

(d} Disputed, Censidered Doubtful
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TEESTA VALLEY TEA CO. LIMITED

| 14. Cash & Cash Equivalents

Particulars

31st March 2023
Amount {Rs.in '000)

31st March 2022
Amount (Rs.in "000)

Balances With Banks in Current Accounts

620.15 65950
Cash-in-Hand 16.44 31.77
Total 636.50 691.27
| 15. Loans (Unsecured & Considered Good) |
31st March 2023 31st March 2022 |

Particulars

Amount {(Rs.in "000)

Amount (Rs.in "000)

Loan To Body Corporate 40973 409.73
Advance To Employees 1,741.29 1,741.29
Total 2,151.02 2,151.02
| 16. Other Financial Assets (Unsecured & Considered Good) |
31st March 2023 31st March 2022

Particulars

Amount (Rs.in "000)

Amount [Rs.in "000)

Deposit With NABARD {TDAS-2007 Account) 3,764.00 3,764.00
Interest Accured on Others (NABARD) 177.84 135.50
Interest Accured on Loan To Body Corporate 235.82 235.82
Subsidy Receivable (Tea Board of India) 9,625.68 5.606.21
Total 13,803.24 12,741.53
[ 17. Current Tax Assets (Net) |
31st March 2023 31st March 2022

Particulars

Amount {Rs.in "000)

Amount (Rs.in "000)

Advance Income Tax (Met of Provizions Rs. 84,75,000/- 4623.93 4 352.00
P.Y Rs.64,75,000/-)
Total 4,623.93 4,352.00
[ 18. Other Current Assets |

Partil 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
oy Amount (Rs.in '000) | Amount (Rs.in '000)

Rent Receivable 3092 -
Advance To Suppliers 351.87 328,65
Other Advance 309.27 7.73
Prepaid 157.38 174.26
Total 849.44 510.64
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Equity And Liabilities ]

Equity -
Particulirs J1st March 2023 3Mst March 2022
Amount (Re.in 000} | Ameodwnt {Rs.in )
14, Equrty Share Capital =)
Athwrisesd |
SO0 P S Expuity Shanes of Re 100 each 5000 5,00
| 175000 (F.Y 17 '} & Redeemable Mon Cemulative
_ Pralemnce Shares of Rs 100 gach 17.500 17,500
- 22,500 22,500
Issued, Subsnbed & Fully Paid-up |
130000 (P.Y 150000) Equity Shares of s 105 each fully paid up 1.500 1.500
| TT2000 (Y 162000) 5% Redeemable Non Cumustive
Preferance Shares of B 1000 each 11,200 11 300
i) i Redeemable Mon Cumiatve Preference Shares e Redeemabie
any teme aftor axpiny of five yaars and bofore expiry of bwardy yoars B
Respective dalit of alloiment of Prejerence Shares numaanng
50000, 25000 and I7000 of Rs. 100 cach were isswed on
1203 2005, 77 03 2007 and 2003 2003 tespeciely =
Less @ Transfer To Long Term Sorrowings | 11,200 11,200
Faalmale
7. FIgnl Preference Repayabisly & Restichon il =y, on
1) Shares - (Equiy & Preference) are freely translerable pn:rwjed
i) Applicalion of transter i in duly prescrbed insruments duly stamped,
excuted by ransienor and Iranferes and mwwm
of shares under transfer,
iy For fransfes appecation made by ransteror in respact of partly paid
shores, no objeclion comdes from translenes wilkin beo weaks of his
receipts of notice issued by Company o ihis regard wWs 56 (1)
of Companes Act. 2013,
b} Preference share hoers will be entiled o prefermted reatmen
n respect of divdend and procesds of realisabion of assets of The
GERTIpSHTY Vis-i-vis egquibty share holders under circumstances of
winding up of comparny.
1) Daits of Equity Shares hekd by sharehokfers hokiing more tan 5 % Mo, of Shares M. of Shares
of the equily shares m the Company [% of holding) [% of holding)
Enarat Bajons, Managing Direcior 21560 (14.07 %) 21560 (1437 W)
KMohanban investment Co. Pul. Lid. 15900 (10.60 %) 1500 (1060 %)
Zen industnal Services Lid. 14157 (943 %) 14152 {343 %)
Treshul Company Pyl Lid 11223 [7.48 %) 11223 (T 48 %)
Lrkando Holdings Lid. 10457 (6.897 %) 10457 (6,97 %)
Tingamira Tea Seeds Co, Ld, BS525 (5.68 %) BE2S (5.68 %)
Tensla Valley Expods Lid 10445 (696 %) 10445 (6.96 %) |
hjﬁ it of Preference: Shares heid by shareholders holding No, of Shares No. of Shares
| more than 5% © [% af halding) (% of halding)
/Abna Bajona, Director 71000 (63.38 %) 71000 (63.38 %)
Agastya Bhania Bebeficiany 1rust TOOD (5.25 %} 7000 {5.25 %)
. L. Bayona & Lthers HUF 30000 (7679 %) JO06 (2679 %)
| Feconcilation of the number of shares &1 he beginning and at The end of e year
Thare has been o changel movements m numbar of shares cutstanding
at the beginung and at e end o theyear. E
Taotal 1,500 1.500
Shares hekd by promaters as defined in the Companies Ac, 2013 a1 the end of the year
As at 31.03.2023% An at 3103 2002
% Change During
Fromater Name % of Total Mo, of
Mo, of Shares Shares Shares % of Total Shares The Year .
Bharal Hjaona 215860/ 1437 215680 14.37 0D
Abhz Bajona 4739 316 4739 316 0.00%
Michanbar Invesiment Co P Lid 154800 106D 15900 1060 000
Trishul Comgarny Bvt. Lid, 11293 748 11223 74E 0.00%
Agastya Bhartia Bonoficiary Trust 2000 1.33 2000 1.33 .00,
Orando Holkdng Limited 10457 BAT] 10457 .87 QLD
The Tingamira Tese Sewds Co Lid 525 5.68 BEES ki 0005
Tewsia Valloy Expons Lid I0R45 G508 104435 508 QOO
Elanarhat Investman Co P Lid 1414 %59 Ta14 4,04 Q00
LHirdie Trading Pwl Lid 0 020 300 nzo 000
1 Total 92563 €1.71| 92563 61.71 .00
As at 31.03.2023 As at 31,03.2022
% Change During
Promoter Mame % of Total Mo of
sicoudurionel NI T | Mkl bt ik i
Abha Bajroia 1000/ G338 71000 G3.39 0.00
Agastya BEnartm Benehciary | mest 00 625 000 E.25 0.00
Uhe Tegamea §ea Seeds Go Lid SR a.57 AOHH a.7 0,00
5. L. Bajoria & Others (HUF) 30000 26.79) 30000 28.79 0.00
Total 112000 100| 112000] 10 0.00%




TEESTA VALLEY TEA CO. LIMITED

20. Other Equity

Reserve & Surplus

Particulars

31st March 2023
Amount {Rs.in '000)

31st March 2022
Amount {Rs.in "000)

General Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 7.500.00 7,500.00
Add : Transferred From Retained Eamings - 2
Balance at the end of the year 7.500.00 7.500.00
Capital Redemption Reserve 5,000.00 5,000.00
5,000.00 5,000.00
Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,26,525.07 1,37,382.80
Add : ltems of Other Comprehensive Income Recognised
directly in Retained Eamings & g
Less : Transfer To CRR - 5.000.00
1,26,525.07 1,32,382.80
Add : Profit For The Year {21.851.63) {5,BH7.73)
1,04,673.43 1,26,525.07
Less : Transferred To General Reserve - -
Balance at the end of the year 1,04,673.43 1,26,525.07
Total 1,17,173.43 1.39,025.07
| 21. Non Current Borrowings (Secured)
31st March 2023 31st March 2022

Particulars

Amount (Rs.in "000}

Amount {Rs.in '000)

Wehicle Loan From HDFC Bank Lid. 564 95 754.93
Less : Current Maturities of Long Term Debts 205.34 189.98
35961 56495
{a) Nature of Security :
Hypothecation of Vehicle Purchased
{b) Terms of Repayment :
EMI of Rs.20,181/- From 07.11.2020 To 07.10.2025 at 7.80%
annualised effective rate of interest.
359 61 564 .95
Lease Liability 22517 268.68
6% Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs 100/- each 11,200.00 11,200.00
(Read With Note No.19)
Note : There is no default in repayment of principal or interest
against the above loans.
Total 11,784.78 1203363
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TEESTA VALLEY TEA CO. LIMITED

| 22. Current Borrowings

Particulars

31st March 2023
Amount {(Rs.in "000)

3MstMarch 2022
Amount {Rs.in "000)

Secured Loans Repaybale on Demand From Banks

Cash Credit Limit From HDFC Bank Limited

(a) Nature of Security :

Exclusive charge by way of hypothacation of curment asseis
and moveable fixed assels (excluding Vehicles aguired under
proceeds of Vehical Loan) and equitable morigage on

Land and Factory Building of Tea Estates.

Loan From HDFC Bank (1)
Warking Capital Loan (Other Than Cash Credit)

Less : Currenl Malurilies of Long Term Debls

{a) Nature of Security ©
100% Guatantee From NCGTC (Ministry of Finance, Govt. of India)

(b} Terms of Repayment :
{Equal Monthly Installment of Rs.3,16,667/- each starfing from
15.10.2021 Ta 15.10.2024)
{c) Rate of Interest :
Interest payable on monthly basis @ 8.25 % p.a Fixed

Loan From HOFC Bank (2)
Working Capital Loan (Other Than Cash Credit)

Less : Cument Maturities of Long Term Debts

(a) Nature of Security :
100%: Guatantee From NCGTC (Ministry of Finance, Govt. of India)

{b) Terms of Repayment :
{Equal Monthly Installment of Rs.1,58,333/- each starting from
15.05.2024 To 15.04.202T)
{Principle Moratorium Period 24 Months i.e. 15.05.2022 To 15.04 2024)
{c) Rate of Interest :
Interest payable on monthly basis @ 8.25 % p.a Fixed

Component of Working Capital Loan Repayable Within a Year
Component of Vehicle Loan Repayable Within a Year
Short Term Maturity on Lease Obligation Repayable Within a Year

Unsecured Loans

Loan From Director

Loan From Related Parties

Loan From Others

Interest Accrued on Unsecured Loan

MNote : There is no default in repayment of principal or interest
against the above loans.

53,337.04

5,700.00

3,800.00

52,911.97

9,500.00

3,800.00

1,900.00

5,700.00

5,700.00

5,700.00

3,5800.00
22897
43.51

25,525.00
25,300.00
1.950.00

220124

3,800.00
21381
47.97

25 72500

12,200.00

2,349.65

Total

1,20,985.76

1,02,948.21
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1'23. Trade Payables

TEESTA VALLEY TEA CO. LIMITED.

Trade Payables For Goods And Services

31st March 2023
Amount (Rs.in '000)

31t March 2022
Amount (Rs.in '000) |

Total Qutstanding Dues of MSME (Refer Te Nole Below)
Total Qustanding Dues of Creditors Oiher Than MSME

87.06
22,145.59

27213
15,996.89

Total

22 933 65

16,269.02

any supplier as at end of the year :
- Prinicipal
- Interest

accounting year.

payables is disclosed in note no.).

Mote : Thene are no material dues owned by the company to Micro and
Small enterprises, which are oulstanding for more than 45 days during the
year and as al 31st March 2023, expect dues amounting {o Rs.81, 498/
P.Y Rs.2 659 734/-). This information as required under the

MEME Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such
parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the
company and has been relied upon by the auditors.

The prinicipal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to

Interest on overdue amount has not been provided by the company,
Aproximate nterest for the year is Rs 21,267/ (P.Y. Rs.6,630/- Total Rs. 27 895/
The amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the
MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amount of payment made to the

supplier beyond the appomied date during the year,
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which hawve been paid tut beyond the appointed day during the
year) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act 2006,
The Amount of interest accured and remaining unpaid at the end of each

The amaunt of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeading years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small emterprises for the purpose of disallowance as
a deductable expenditure under the MSMED Act 2006

{The Company's exposure to curmency and liquidity risks related to trade

81.50

2689.74

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule

Trade Payable 1Inc|;.|-ﬂing Acceptance)
MSME

Other Than MSME

Disputed Dues - MSME

Disputed Dues - Other Than MSME

Not Due

" Qutstanding For Following Periods From

Due Date of Payments

Le<s Than 1 Year

1-2 Years

2-2 Years

More Than 3 Years

As at 31.03.2023

5.56
15,384.25

2507
3,821.57

17.63
B78.27

87.06
22,145.59

Total

15,389.81

3,857.34

2,089.59

895.91

22,232.65

Not Due

Outstanding For Following Periods From

Due Date of Payments

Less than 1 Year

1-2 Years

2-3 Years

More Than 3 Years

As at 31.03.2022

Trade Payable {Including Acceptance)
MESME

Other Than MSME

Dispuled Dueas - MSME

Disputed Dues - Other Than MSME

27213
10,641.50

353774

32856

1,489.59

27213
15,996.89

Total

10,913.62

3,537.24

328.56

1,489.59

16,269.02
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TEESTA VALLEY TEA CO. LIMITED

| 24. Other Financial Liabilities

S ticiare 3ist Han:hLEIEE 31st March 2022
Amount (Rs.in '000) | Amount (Rs.in '000)
Empioyees Dues Payable 700589 745023
Othver Payables 2,767 68 0.83
Total i 9,773.57 7.451.16
[ 25. Other Current Liabilities =4
Parbiculars Jist Man:ht2023 315t Miarch 2022
Amount (Rs.in '000) | Amount (Rs.in '000)
Advance From Customers 68,931.66 45 425 52
Statutory Liabilities 31,805.65 31.440.44
Total 1,00,837.31 77.865.96
| 26. Current Tax Liabilities (Net) ]

Particulars

31st March 2023
Amount (Rs.in "000)

31st March 2022
Amount (Rs.in "000)

Provision For Income/ Agri Tax {Net of Advance Tax Rs.16,39,182/- 410.82 41082
P.Y Rs.16,39,182/)
Total 410.82 410.82
27. Revenue From Operations |
R 31=t March 2023 31st March 2022
gl Amount (Rs.in '000) | Amount (Rs.in '000)
(A} Sale of Products
Sale of Tea - Orthodox {Domestic) 1.71,656.04 1,89,816.85
(B) Other Operating Revenues
Tea Board Orthodox Subsidy 1.018.47 1,029.40
Total 1.72,675.51 1,90,846.25
| 28. Other Income |
. 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Particulars ]
_ - Amount (Rs.in '000) | Amount (Rs.in "000)
Other Interest Income (NABARD) 197 .61 150.55
Other Interest Income (WBSEDCL) 56 69 56.69
Mobile Tower Lease Rent 488 95 -
Insurance Clam 62,95 -
Sundry Receipts 14 08 238
Tea Bush Compensation 41.25 -
Sundry Credit Balance Written Back 1,085 32 8.00
Total 2,846.85 217.64

10




TEESTA VALLEY TEA CO. LIMITED

| 29. Change in Inventories of Finished Goods (Tea)

e | e
Opening Stock 96,575.88 1,05,519.64
Closing Stock 80,462 .85 96 57588

Total 16,113.03 8,943.76
| 29A. Change in Biological Assets |
P 31st March 2023 31st March 2022

Amount (Rs.in "000)

Amount (Rs.in '000)

Fair Value of Biological Assets Other Than Bearer
Plants (Unharvested Tea Leaves)
As At Opening Date

24 394 10 23.911.50
As At Closing Date 53,626.55 24 3584 10
Total (29,232.45) (482.60)

30. Employees Benefit Expenses

Particulars

31st March 2023
Amount {R=_in "000)

31st March 2022
Amount (Rs.in "000)

Salanes, Wages & Bonus 1,13,564 .38 1,02,316.73

Contribution To P.F And Other Funds 15.212.21 1342117

Gratutity 1,028.97 1,04593

Staff & Labour Walfare Expenses [, 744 58 3,868.71
Total 1,37,550.14 1,20,652.54

| 31. Finance Cost |
. 31st March 2023 31st March 2022

Particulars Amount (Rs.in '000) | Amount (Rs.in '000)

Interest Expenses :

(a) Interest Expenses 9,008.54 8,332.96

(b) Bank Charges 195.53 22.35
Total 9,204 .47 £,355.31

| 32. Depreciation And Amortization Expenses

Particulars

31st March 2023
Amount {Rs.in "000)

31st March 2022
Amount (Rs.in "000)

On Fixed Assets 4 254,33 4 660.23
On Intangible Assets A7.48 63.29
Total 4,301.81 4,723.53




TEESTA VALLEY TEA CO. LIMITED

| 33. Other Expenses

Particulars

31st March 2023
Amount (Rs.in "000)

J1st March 2022
Amount {Rs.in '000)

Auditor’s Remuneration :
Audit Fees B.C_Kundu (Branch) 13,000

Audit Fees B.C Kundu (Tax) 10,000
Audit Fees Stat Basu Chanchani 45000 68.00 51.00
Consumption of Stores And Spare Parts (100% Domestic) 20,152.56 15,474 57
Fower And Fuel 6,642.79 5,870.52
Rent 147.00 147.00
Repairs To Buildings 464 57 963.07
Repairs To Machinery 859.25 2,348 51
Insurance 436 84 566 85
Rates & Taxes 427.94 178.88
Cultivation Expenses 21,358.94 2149023
Sales Expenses 3,594.50 2,163.61
Carrige of Tea 808.98 688.23
Repairs To Others 674.69 661.13
Directors Fees 75.00 75.00
Telephone, Telex & Other Expenses 20.89 4.40
Miscellaneous Expenses 361388 2,950.81
Total 59,345.82 53,733.81

[ 33A. Details of Miscellaneous Expenses

31st March 2023

J1st March 2022

Particulars Amount (Rs.in '000) | Amount (Rs.in '000)
Electricity Charges 180.36 160.03
Legal & Professional Charges 627 44 1,217.24
Motor Car Expenses 9.40 47.93
Medical Exp 80.11 -
Printing & Stationery 288.36 189.43
ROC Filling Fees 69.57 14.45
Subscription 492 55 204.72
Travelling & Coneyance Expenses 397.83 23777
Advertisement 13.18 13.86
Postage & Courier Charges 450 12.41
Other Expenses 1,440 57 B52.96
Total 3.,613.88 2,950.81




TEESTA VALLEY TEA COMPANY LTD.
NOTES OF ACCOUNTS

34. Related partics in transaction and nature of relationships with them :

a) Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Mr. Abhishek Dev - CEO
Mr. Bishnu Charan Dalai — CFO (Resigned on 01.05.2022)
Mr. Praveen Kumar — CFO (Appointed on 01.05.2022)
Ms. Sneha Singhania — Company Secretary (Resigned on 01.03.2023)
Ms. Sweta Saraf - Company Secretary (From 01.03.2023 To 29.05.2023)

b) Dhrectors :

Bharat Bajoria
Radhey Kant Dixit (Resigned on 11.07.2023)
Mudit Bajoria

Abha Bajoria

Ram Kishan Nowal
Dhruv Bajoria

<)
influence.

The Tingamira Tea Seed Co. Limited
leesta Valley Exports Limited
Orlando Holdings Limited
Budge Budge Investment Co. Pvt. Lid.
7en Industrial Services Ltd.
Mohanbari Investment Co. Pvt. Ltd.

Enterprises over which any person described in (a) & (b) above is able to exercise Significant

d) Disclosure of Transactions carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of the business.
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Transaction With KMP Enterprises Whers KMP Relatives of KMP Directors
Related Parties Amount (Rs. in "000} Has Significant infiuence Amount (Rs. in '000) Amount {Rs. in ‘000)
—=— Amount {Rs. in "000) ]
31.3.2023 31.3.2022 31.3.2023 31.3.2022 31.3.2023 31.3.2022 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Sales - = 77140599 | 1,02177.53 - - -
Expenditurz = : = =
Interest Paid — | 3zesaz 144531 | 1,615.37 | 1,250.96
Rent Paid . . 12000 120.00 T == ;
Bemuneration 1,533.00 124360 - -
Miscellanegus Expenses - - 168.00 120.00 - -
Board Meeting Feps - - 20.00 20,00 5500 55.00
| Finance & Investments e e - -
Loan Taken (Net) 16,000.00 | 2737500 | 570000 | 18,150.00 B TR
Loan Refunded Back {Met) = 2,900.00 19,675.00 4,900.00 B,075.00
Bank Guarantee Renewal _180,000.00 | 1,80,000.00 - -
Dutstanding
Loan taken 2530000 | 12,20000 | 26,525.00 | 25,725.00 3
Interest Payable 29372 99358 | 126580 | 1356.07
Sales advance Laken 68,931.66 46,425.52 - - -
Directors Fees - = 20.00 20,00 55.00 55.00
Bank Guarantee 1.30.000.00 | 1,80,000.00 . . -




35. Earning Per Share : 31.03.2023  31.03.2022
(Rs. in “000) (Rs. In"000)

Net Profit/ (Loss) as per Profit & Loss Account (21.760.45) (4.862.46)
Less : Preference dividend on Pref, Shares - i

Net Profit/ (Loss) attributable to Equity Sharcholders (21,760.45) (4.862.46)
No. of Equity Shareholders 150.00 150.00
Farnings Per Share (Of Rs.10/-each) basic & diluted (145.07) (32.42)

36. Raw Matenal Produced & Consumed — Green Leaf (Kgs in “000) 1,574.05 1,576.09

37. Finished Goods (Quantity in Kgs in ‘000)

Opening Stock of Tea T1.26 111.07
Actual Production of Tea 339.83 343.13
Sale of Tea 341.42 356.49
Samples,Garden use, shortage etc. 20.19 20,46
Closing Stock of Tea (Includes 1.84 Kgs of Tea Waste) 55.48 7126

38. Contingent Liabilities & Commitments (Not Provided For) (Rs.in’000) :
a} Claim against company not acknowledge as debt :

Agriculture Income Tax (1975-76) under appeal 80.34 8034
Income Tax (TDS) for the Asst. Year 1993-94 123.57 123.57
Income Tax for the Asst. Year 2013-2014 4.162.62 4,162.62
Income Tax for the Asst. Year 2014-2015 31953 319.53

(IDisallowed by the authorities and challenged by the Company
before CI'T Appeal)

Damages charge demand raised by PF authorities for delayed
payment of PF dues between 1996-1997 to 2013-2014 432937 4329 37
(Disputed by company in Calcutta High court against which
Rs.25.00.000/- had been deposited to Court)
b) Guarantee furnished to Bank 1,80,000.00  1,80,000.00

39 Loan to Body Corporate Rs.409.73 (P.Y Rs.409.73) relates to a party against whom Company
has filed recovery suit. No interest income has been recognized thereon, though claimed under
suit as a measure of abundant precaution in due adherence of AS-9 though same has been

claimed under the suit.

40.  PF Interest (7Q) And Penal Damage (14B) — The company has been granted deferred payment
scheme by PF Department vide letter dated 12.04.2023 for Teesta Valley Tea Estate and letter
dated 28.04.2023 for Gielle Tea Estate, of old PF Liability along with demand for PF interest
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under 7Q and Penal Damage under 14B. 7Q demand is (Rs.in *000) 2,032.30 and 14B demand is
(Rs.in “000) 3,441.32. The management has decided that 7Q) and 14B will be charged to revenue
account at the time of payment i.e. as and when paid. The company has issued 72 post dated
cheque to the PF Department with respect to demand for Teesta Valley Tea Estate And Gielle
Tea Fstate. The amount will be adjusted against old liability then 7Q and at last 14B.

Information pursuant to Section 186(4) of Companies Act, 2013 : Guarantee furnished 1n favour
to 11DFC Bank Limited on behalf of Teesta Valley Exports Limited for Rs.18 Crore towards said
company’s availment ol working capital facility from bank.

As on As on
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
(Rs. in “000) (Rs. in “000)

Capital Management

The Company’s policy focuses on maintenance of stable and strong capital

base s0 as to maintain investors creditors and market conditions to sustain

future developments and growth of the business in order to maintain the

capital base of the company as a going concern. The return on capital as

well as dividend to the shareholders of the company.

Capital includes issued capital and all Equity Reserve and Debts
obligation to third party. Company monitor capital on following

bearing ratio.

Total Equity 12987343  1,52,782.47
Total Debts 25482489  2.05,774.30
Debts Equity Ratio % 196 1.35

Financial Risk Management

The company’s financial risk management is integral part of how to plan

and execute its business strategies and its risk policies are monitored by

the Board. The company’s activities to expose to varieties of risks such as
credit risk, liquidity nisk and market risks accordingly frame its policies to
minimize the adverse effects.

Credit Risk : Credit risk is the risk that counter party will not mects its
Obligation to a financial loss of the company.

“The company has its policies to limits its exposure to credit risk arising from
outstanding receivables from the

“Customers, review its payment terms, credit limits of each customers Periodically.

Liquidity Risk

Liguidity risks is the risk that the company may face its obligation
to timely re payments its credit facilities.

The company closely monitors its cash tlow and ensuring timely
collections of its receivables as well as — “movements of inventories.
The table below summaries the maturity profile of its liabilities.
Payable on demand/ within a year



44.

Borrowing — Secured and Unsecured 1,20985.76  1.02.948.20

Trade Payables 22.232.65 16,269.01

Other Financial Liabilities 9.773.57 7.451.16

Other Current Liabilities 1.00.837.31 77.865.96

Total-A 2,53,819.29 20453435

As on As on

31.03.2023 31.03.2022
{Rs. in “000) (Rs. in “000)

Payable on 1 to 5 vears

Borrowing — Secured - -

Borrowing — unsecured 22517 268.68

Total-B 22517 268.68

Total — (A+B) 2,54.054.46 2,04.803.02

Market Risk : Market risk is the risks of fluctuation of fair value of its products, since

Company’s business is agriculture in nature, adverse, weather condition,

demand/ supply gap and interest rate may effects its cash flow, so company

monitors and changes its exposures as well as sales strategics.

Interest Risk : The company’s interest are at fixed rate. Details are given below:

Secured loan - 3.25% 8.25%

Unsecured loan 8.00% 8.00%%

Securities encumbered with Banks :

Vehicle 58858 778.56

Buildings 35,622.89 33.685.38

Plant & Machinery 9.337.06 832523

Bearer Plants 1.90.719.31 1,90,719.31

Trade Receivables - .

Inventories 83,377.59 1.01,123.85

New Standards/ Amendments applied during the vear in respect of company’s Financial

Statements : On 28" March, 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified Ind AS
I 15-Revenue from Contracts with Customers and certain amendment to existing Ind AS. These
amendments shall be applicable to the company from 1* April 2018.

a)

b)

Ind AS 115- Revenue from Contracts with customers (New) — Ind AS 115 supersede Ind AS 11,
Construction Constracts and Ind AS 18, Revenue Ind AS 115 requires an entity to report

information regarding nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flow arising

from contract with customers. The principle of Ind AS 115 is that an entity should recognize revenue
that demonstrates the transfer of promised goods and services to the customers at

an amwunt et rellecis the consideration w which the entity expects 1o be entitled in

cxchange lor those goods and services,

Ind As 12 — Income Tax (Amendment) - Consideration of restrictive tax laws in sources of laxable
profit and corresponding reversal of deductible temporary differences.

Ind AS 21 - The Effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates (Amendment) — on application of
newly inserted appendix B pertaining to foreign currency in connection of non monetary
assets/liabilities. The impact of the above new standards amendments did not have material impact on
the financial statements.
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46, Reconcilation of Lease Liability :

1. Future M_L.P (Total Installment - Interest) 1.047.55
2. Interest Accrued TI8.87
3. Lease Amount as on 31.03.2023 (i.e future M.L.P- Interest accrued) 208.68

47.  Revenue from the contracts with customers disaggregated based on primary geographical markets, major
products, type of sales and type of customers.

{Rs.in “000) i Rs.in 000}
For the period For the period
ended 31.03.2023 ended 31.03.2022
Type of Goods & Services

Orthodox Tea 1,71,656.04 1,89,816.85
Total 1.71,656.04 1.89,816.85

Geographical Region
West Bengal, Kolkata 1.71,656.04 1.89,816.85
i) Total 1,71,656.04 1,89,816.85

Type of Sales
Manufactured 1,71,656.04 1.89.816.85
Total 1,71,656.04 1.89.816.85
Type of Customers
MNon Government 1,71,656.04 ~ 1.89.816.85
Total | 1,71,656.04 1,89,816.85
48, The figures of the financial statement are expressed in absolute term due to shortage of work foree as

apainst Clause-5, Schedule—iii of division —ii laying down presentation of figure to the nearest of
hundred/ thousand/ lakhs/ million or decimal thereof.

49. Based on the information available to us and our reasonable search on 31.03.2023 in MCA Porial. We
have not come across any Company that has been struck off from MCA records, with whom the Company has
any business relationship.
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Key Financial Ratios

Numerai:t_)r

T

| SL.No. Ratios Denominator FY2022-23 | FY2021-22 | %
= Variance |
1 Current Ratio Current Assets | Current Liabilities 0.63 0.71 12.15 |
Debt - Equity Total Debt ( _ '
2 . = { i
_ Ratio Borrowings) Total Equity 0.10 0.09 (15.96)
. Finance Cost
| . .
| T Ean_ungs {exr_hfdfng cost
3 _ available for Pertaining to lease (0.21) 0.19 209.62
Coverage Ratio ! T g
Debt Service liabilities)+Repayment
of borrowings)
] 4 Return on Equity | Profit after tax | Average Total Equity (0.17) {0.04) (312.92)
E
Inventory Cost of Goods
5 : A | ; : ;
[ el s verage Inventory 0.76 0.50 (51.78)
. Revenue from
6 Trade Receivables cole o Average Trade ) )
T : .
urnover Ratic A" receivables
Services
Trade Payables
7 | Tum Over Ratio Trade Payable | Turnover 0.13 0.05 (51.04)
) Working Capital
g |[DeEkapel s i e (1.81) (3.24) 43.93
Turnover Ratio Operation o
Current Liabilities)
R f
9 | NetProfit Ratio | Profitaftertax | o ue rom (0.13) {0.03) (312.29)
Operations
Profit before
Imere# Average Capital
Return on Capital fexcluding Employed [Total
10 3 p interest on ey (1.07) 021 617.07
Employed i Equity + Total Debt
lease liabilities), i orminail]
exceptional B
items and tax
; Time weighted |
Return on Income durin |
11 & average of NA NA NA
Investment the year ;
investment
a. Return on
Mutual Funds
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b. Return on Fixed [
Deposit |
c. Return on
Bonds
d. Return on
| quoted equity
| investment

3 8

(A) Additional Regulatory Information Required by Schedule 11T to the Companies Act.2013

(i) The Company does not have any benami property held in its name. No proceedings have been
initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami
Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 (48 of 198%) and Rules made thereunder.

(ii) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender of government or any government authority.
(iif)  The Company has complied with the requirement with respect to number of layers as prescribed
under section 2(87) of the Companies Act,2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on number
of layers) Rules, 2017,
(iv)  Utilisation of borrowed Funds
I. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (intermediarics) with the understanding that the
intermediary shall:
a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Benefliciaries) or
b} Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries
2. The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in wriling or otherwise) that
the Company shall:
a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalfl of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b} Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

(v) There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in tax assessments under

the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as search or survey), that has not been recorded in the books of
account.

(vi) The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the vear.

(vii)  The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction of charges which 1s vet to be registered
with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

(B) Disclosure as per Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015

There are no loans and advances in the nature of loans given to subsidiaries, associates and others and
investment in shares ol the Company by such parties as at 31 March,2023 and 31 March 2022,

19




(C) Disclosure as per Section 186 of the Companies Act.2013

The details of loans. guarantees and investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act,2013 read with
the Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules. 2014 are as follows:

(i) There are no any Investment made by the Company as at 31 March.2023 and 31* March.2022.
(it} There are guarantees issued to HDFC Bank on behalf of M/s Teesta Valley Exports Lid. but not any
loans given by the Company as at 31" March,2023 and 31¥ March 2022 (Refer to Note No. 38)

For Basu Chanchani & Deb
Chartered Accountants
R.No.- 304049E

{Samir Kumar Ghosh)
Partner
(M.No. 0530386)

Bharat Bajoria
UDIN : 23053036BGWOYCA522 Director
Place: Kolkata DIN : 00109241

Dated : 2157 August, 2023

Mudit Bajoria Ram Kishan Mowal Praveen Kumar
Director Director CFO
DIN : 00015402 DIN : 00310028
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